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PREFATORY NOTE.

A FEW years since the MS. containing the following

pedigree of Huyshe was purchased from the catalogue

of a London bookseller. It is carefully written and bound,

and appears from a letter preserved and inserted, that it was

sent by the Rev. Francis Huyshe, of Pennsylvania, Exeter, to

John Burke, Esq., of Eaynham Place, Chelsea, London, on

19th September, 1839. In this letter Mr. Huyshe says, " with

this you will receive a correct copy of Mr. Protheroe's pedi-

gree of Huyshe, which I believe you expect from him. I am
fully confident, that you will think your most valuable work

really honoured by the high ability and zeal that has spared

neither trouble nor expense, which he has brought to the work,

upon which he has been engaged very many years."

It is probable Mr. Burke was then compiling his Genea-

logical and Heraldic History of the Commoners of Great Britain

and Ireland, and this pedigree was furnished him to give
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particulars relative to the family of Huyshe. It has been

transcribed verbatim, slightly re-arranged in a few places for

greater clearness. The Notes added have been collected from

various sources, and special thanks are offered to Mr. Roscoe

Gibbs for the gift of his excellent drawings for the illustrations.

W. H. HAMILTON ROGERS, F.S.A.

Exeter, June, 1897.

INTRODUCTION.

The following pedigree is based :
—

I.—On the MSS. of Mr. Palmer of Fairfield, who took

great pains in the beginning of the last century on families of

West Somerset. His papers, which are in possession of Sir

Peregrine Palmer Acland, Bart., and his mother Lady Acland,

give the whole of the old Doniford Huyshes, and the branch

(of Wells) which produced Alexander Huish, the great

assistant of Walton in his Polyglott. Collinson is greatly

indebted to Mr. Palmer.

II.—The Heralds Visitations, which give Doniford and its

branches of London, Sand, and Clysthidon, from Oliver Huyshe

temp. Henry VI, down to the present.

III.—An old pedigree found among deeds that had been

brought from Sand in 1724. This gives the family of Huyshe

who first resided at Sand before the building of the present

house ; and states the connection of the Huyshes of Taunton

with those of Doniford and Sand. Its correctness is every-

where proved.

I conceive that every real judge will be struck with the

ability and indefatigable zeal of Mr. Protheroe, now M.P. for

Halifax, in corroborating these, and filling up from every

kind of authentic documents.
. FRANCIS HUYSHE.

Pennsylvania, near Exeter,
September, 1837.
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PRINTED ACCOUNTS OF THE FAMILY

OF HUYSHE.

Some notices occur in Collinson's History of Somersetshire :

—

I.—Introduction, page xxviii. Richard de Lod-Hywish,

among the possessors of land temp. Edward I.

II.—Page 201. Beckington,—Alexander Huish.

III.—Page 491. St. Decumans.

III.—Page 541. Nettlecombe,—Lodhuish.

A brief notice is found in Risdon's Devon (Sidbury, p. 34,

ed. 1811), who seems to have thought that none but an upstart

could hefaber suce fortunce.

Sir William Pole

—

Collections, page 514—on " Hiwys of

Hiwys," bears testimony against this ; p. 165 on Sand, Sir

William notices Rowland Huyshe, who built the "dainty

dwelling," as it was in Risdon's time.

A drawing of Sand appears in the Gentleman s Magazine of

March, 1834.

Lyson's Britannia notices Huyshe at p. cxlix, p. 119 and

444. He has deviated from the account that I gave him, and

is incorrect where he chose to depart from it. He, like Risdon,

at cxlix, is in opposition to Sir William Pole, 514. He says

Huyshe was probably a younger branch of Hiwis of Hiwis.

Note.—The offending notice by Risdon runs thus :
—" Sand, was by the dean

and chapter granted unto William, surnamed of the place, in the reign of King
Henry III, to whom succeeded Deodatus his son, afterwards by a daughter of

Trivett, this land came to Tremayle, from whom descended Sir Thomas Tre-
mayle, one of the justices of common pleas in King Henry VII's time. This
was since purchased by one Huish, who is here seated in a dainty dwelling."

Sir W. Pole, who Risdon appears to have followed in his description of the
descent, says nothing as to a "dainty dwelling" ; which was Risdon's com-
mentary ; with the somewhat contemptuous prefix as to its builder.

Westcote notes— " In Sidbury at Sand, is a generous race of Huish."

The engraving of Sand was given by the Rev. Francis Huyshe to the Gentle-

man's Magazine.
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ARMS.

The bearing of Huyshe since the marriage with the heiress

of Roach has been :

—

Argent, on a bend sable, three luces of the

field. Crest :

—

On a wreath argent and sable, an elephant's

head couped argent, crowned and tusked or.

The ancient bearings of Huyshe (tricked in the MS.) were

1. A chevron between three roundels.

2. A chevron, and in a chief three walnut or oak leaves.

Note.—In a genealogical window in Clysthidon church, the tinctures of the
antient coats of Huyshe are thus given:—(1) Sable, a chevron or, in a chief
argent, three leaves proper, and (2) Gules, a chevron between three plates argent.

The Rev. Francis Huyshe, sometime rector of Clysthidon,

Prebendary (of) Cutton in the Castle of Exeter, born 29th

Feb., 1768, married at Halifax in Yorkshire, 18th May, 1803.

Harriet, third daughter of John Waterhouse of Well-

head, Halifax, Esq., and Elizabeth his wife, second daughter

and coheir of Charles Beaty of Louth, by Bridget, daughter

and coheir of Robert Saunderson of Alford (Lincolnshire),

born 14th Oct., 1771. Issue:

1.— Horatio, born 3rd Nov., 1805, died 3 1st Dec. same year.

2.—Harriet, born 13th March, 1810 (married 20th Feb.,

1838 to Arthur Abbott).

?>.— Wentworth, born 29th May, 1812, died at Madeira 22nd

Nov., 1829.

Note.—Inscription in Clysthidon church :—" The Rev. Francis Huyshe,
M.A., many years rector of this parish. Born at Pembridge, Herefordshire,

29th February, 1768. Died, 28th August, 1839."

Arms:—Huyshe, impaling; Or, a pile engrailed sable. (Waterhouse).

A memorial window to Arthur Abbott, ob. Nov. 1848, erected by his widow,
and a tablet to Wentworth Huyshe who died at Madeira, 1829.

His early virtues and the affection of his schoolfellows are

recorded on a cenotaph erected by them to his memory in

Harrow church.
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LINEAGE.

This is a branch of the antient family of Huyshe of Doniford,

iu Somersetshire, whose name, originally spelt Hywis, was

taken from their residence Lod-Hywis in the same county.

James Huyshe, third son of John Huyshe of Doniford,

living in the latter part of the sixteenth century, acquired

considerable wealth by trade in London.

Sand in Devonshire, which he bought of his cousins, Thomas

and Anthony Huysh, became the residence of his eldest son

Rowland and his posterity until 1724.

James Huyshe, the eldest son of Rowland, married a coheir

of the Reynells, of Credy, and his descendants thus became

possessed of the manor and advowson of Clysthidon.

Note.—The very antient name of Hiwis or Hywis, subsequently softened

by many variants to Huish or Huyshe, as a family appellative, is found in the

three counties of Somerset, Devon, and Cornwall. These may all have de-

scended from a common ancestor, or what is equally probable derived the name
from the locality they resided in. A recent writer, the Rev. J. Stubbs —article,

Huish-Episcopi —in Vol. XX, S. A. & N. H. S. Proceedings, 1894, p. 76, remarks
" The word Huish is variously derived. By some it is traced to the Celtic
' Wych' (pronounced OO-ish) meaning 'water,' and it is assigned as a reason

why so many places bear this designation that they are to be found in those

spots, where a small rivulet or stream trickles down between two rising grounds.

By others, the origin of the name is to be found in the Anglo-Saxon ' Hi-wisc '

—

'the homestead'— 'the homestead farm'—consisting of a 'hide' of land, the

territorial possession of. a primitive Teutonic family, and we are pointed to the

fact that each Huish is to be found near some large town. But whatever the
origin of the word ' Huish ' the name carries us far back into history."

Hiwis is mentioned in Domesday, and thus quoted by Collinson, vol. i, p.

xxviii :
—

Summersete. Raimer (clericus) ten. de W. Hi wis. Chinesi tenuit T.R.E.
& geldebat pro una virg. terras. Terra est 1 car. quae ibi est cum 1 servo &
1 cotar & 3 bord. Valuit & val. 10 solid. Radulfus ten. de W. Hi wis. Ailuui
tenuit T.R.E. & geldebat pro una virg. terras. Terra est 1 car. quas ibi est

cum 5 bord. Valuit & val. 10 sol.

Beside the Lod-Hywish of this present descent in Nettlecombe, we have
Huish-Episcopi and Huish-Champflower in Somerset, aud Huish in North
Devon, and North and South Huish in South Devon, all parishes so named.

The Somersetshire family of Hywis or Huish, is carefully traced in the
pedigree. Of the Devonshire descent Sir W. Pole writes, p. 347, "Stowford,
or Stafford, and Boveland (in North Devon), did Philip de Hiwis hold in King
Henry II's time (1154-89), unto whom succeeded three of the name of William.
The last Sir William married Jone, daughter and heir of Sir Richard Bauceyn,
of Norton Bauceyn, Knt. , and had issue, Sir Richard de Hiwys, which married
Matild, daughter of Sir Alan Blochou the elder, Knt., and had issue, Sir

Richard ; he died, a.d., 1297- Sir Richard, his son, married Margaret, daughter
of Sir Adam Crete, and had issue by Emeline, daughter of Sir William
Botreaux, Sir Richard. The said Sir Richard died, a.d., 1340, and his son
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Richard ten years before him. Sir Richard Hiwis the fourth, married Alis,
daughter of Sir ftalph Blanchmonster, and had issue, William Hiwis, which
died without issue, and Emeline, wife of Sir Robert Tresilian, Chief Justice of
England, and after unto Sir John Colshull."

This descent of Hywis had possessions and were also seated at Lansallos and
Tremodart in Duloe, Cornwall. On 2nd August, 1310, Dame Matilda de Hiwis,
relict of Sir Richard, ob. 1297, obtained from Walter Stapledon, Bishop of Exeter,
license for an oratory at Tremodart, in Duloe, and on the 20th May, 1332, Sir
Richard de Hywische, Knt., obtained licenses from John Grandison, Bishop of
Exeter, for oratories at Rathewell, in Lansallos, and Tremoderet, or Tremodart,
in Duloe. Their arms appear to have been Gules, fretty argent, with sometimes
the addition of a Canton of the second.

Pole, further observes, p. 514,
'

' The issue male (of Hiwis) continued unto
the latter end of King Edward Ill's time. The heir general is Copleston, by
Hauley and Tresilian. There is not any left of that family ; but there is of
the name of another family which came out of Somersetshire."

PEDIGREE.

I.— l&iCljartl of Lod-Hywis, living in the reign

of King John (1199-1216), had issue (1) Richard de Hywis,

and (2) John.

II.—31°&n l£#tol& of Lynch, in the parish of Lux-

borough. He had issue, John.

III.—^Q))Tl tit =l££tot0l), who had a grant of a house and

a carucate of land in Doniford, from John Fitzurse, 38 Henry

III, 1254. (Contemporaries). Mr. Palmer mentions a Bar-

tholomew de Lod-Hywish and an Andrew of the same name,

living in the reign of Henry III. The latter had a daughter

who married Andrew de Cottele. He had issue, Gejfry.

LOD-HYWISH.
Note.—Collinson notes, "The family of Hewish takes its name from Hewish,

otherwise Lud- Hewish, in the parish of Nettlecombe, and is descended from
John de Hywis, of Linch, in the parish of Luxborough. The descendants of

this John lived at Linch, and sometimes at Doniford till the time of Henry
IV (1399-1413), when Oliver Hewish, of Doniford, gave his lands at Linch to

Richard his younger son, whose posterity settled at Holnicot, in the parish of

Selworthy, and were the ancestors of the Steynings of that place." There
appears to bave been two manors in Nettlecombe with the affix Hywish

—

Begarn-Hywish, and Lud-Hywish. "The latter, in the time of King John
(1199-1216), had owners of the same name, progenitors of the Hewishes of

Linch and Doniford. Richard de Hewis, of Hewis, in the time of Henry III

(1216-72), was the father of another Richard, who, 17 Edward I (1289), calls

himself Richard de Lod-Hywish. At the same time there were Bartholomew
and Andrew de Lod-Hywish, the last of whom had a daughter married to

Richard de Cottelle."

Begarn-Hywish appears subsequently to have passed into the possession of

the Wyndhams, and Lod-Hywish to the Trevelyans.
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IV.— (Brtftp tie l^tote, living 10 Edward I (1282). He

was on the Jury, 2 Edward I, for the hundred of Williton,

county of Somerset {see Hundred Rolls). He had issue, John.

V.— 3|0ijlt lie l^tottflj, of Lynch and Doniford, 19 Edward

II (1326). He had issue (1) Gilbert de Hywish ; (2) Wil-

liam de Hywysh, living 3 and 5 Edward III (1330-2), as ap-

pears by Fines in the Chapter House, Westminster; (3) Joan,

married Walter Perceval, second son of Sir Richard Perceval,

of Corneville, Knt. A widow in 1387. She conveyed her

lands in East Quantock to her brother Gilbert.

Note.—There was a family of Percival located at Weston-in-Gordano,
Somerset, mentioned in the Visitations of that county, "whose ancestors came
out of Wales." Their arms, Argent, on a chief indented gules, three crosses

pat6e or.

VI.— (BUbert tie l^tottff), aforesaid was of Doniford and

Lynch, 4 Edward III (1331), and by Fine dated 5 Edward

III, he with John Durborough and others was witness to a

grant made by John Mohun, Lord of Dunster, to that Priory,

15 Edward III (1343).

He married &ltce, daughter of Sir John Durborough,
Knt., and had issue (1) Olive?'; (2) Alexander; (3) John.

(4) Agnes, wife of John de Tetton.

Note.—Sir John Hulle (or Hylle) of Kyton, in Holcombe-Rogus, Devon, one
of the judges of King's, Bench, ob. 24th June, 1408, married as his first wife,

Dionysia, daughter of Sir John Durburgh, Knt., and widow of Martin Langdon.
She died, 13th October, 1387. Sister probably of Alice Hywish. The Hulles
were afterward of Spaxton.

VII.—£DUfcer ^ptoiSlj, of Doniford and Linch, 42 and 49

Edward III (1369-76). He married the daughter and

heir of Simon he la Roche.

Note.—2 Edward I (1274), William de la Roche, one of

the Jurors of the Hundred of Williton {see Hundred Rolls).

32 Edward I (1304), William de la Roche. 2 Edward II

(1309), Richard de la Roche. 3 Edward III (1330), Richard

de la Roche. Simon de la Roche and Elizabeth his wife.

Alice, widow of Richard de la Roche (see Fines, Chapter

House, Westminster, Somerset.)

In consequence of this marriage the arms of Roche, Argent,
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on a bend sable, three roaches proper, were taken by him and

his posterity instead of the antient bearings of the Hywis's,

which had been a chevron between three roundels, and a chevron

on a chief three leaves. (Contemporary) 3 and 5 Edward III

(1330-2), a William de Hywish (Fines, Chap. H, Westminster,

Somerset).

He had issue (1) John Huyish ; (2) Richard Huyish, to

whom his father gave Lynch, living 10 Henry V (1423), who

had issue Oliver Hewish, of Holnicault, in the parish of Sel-

worthy, whose daughter and heiress married John Woode, of

North-Tawton, and had issue a daughter (represented by some

pedigrees as an heiress) who married William Steynings.

Other pedigrees, those of Woode, give her a brother John,

ancestor of the Woodes of North Tawton.

Note.—There was a family of de la Rupe, or de la Roche, in Devon.
Richard de Rupe, or de Roche, held Cotleigh, 27 Henry III (1243), and to him
his son Robert, temp. Edward I. Sir Ralph Arundell married Eva, eldest

daughter and coheir of Richard de Rupe (Pole). Sir Thomas Archdeacon
married Alice, daughter and coheir of Sir Thomas de la Roche, their son John
married Cecily, daughter and heir of Jordan de Haccombe. Through this mar-
riage the Carews quarter the arms of this descent of Roche, which are given
at Gules, three roaches in pale naiant argent.

Collinson says Simon Raleigh (second son of John Raleigh, of Nettlecombe,
by Ismania Hani am, his second wife), a celebrated knight who was at the battle

of Agincourt. married secondly Joan, daughter of Oliver Huish, of Doniford.

She survived him seventeen years, and 33 Henry VI (1455), completed the

endowment of the chantry her husband had founded in Nettlecombe church.

John Wood, of North Tawton, married Margaret, daughter and heir of Oliver

Hewish, and had issue John, and Maud married to William Steyning.

VIII.—3l0lm ^U£t$), of Doniford, 10 Henry VI (1433).

He married Cfttj)0nn£ and had issue Oliver.

Note.—John Huyshe was seized of the manor of Lud-Huyshe, and by his

deed, dated Tuesday, the Feast of S.S. Peter and Paul, Henry V, he thereby
enfeoffed Hugh Cary and others to hold to them and their heirs for ever, to the

use of the said John Huyshe and his heirs. And by deed dated 8th May,
8 Henry VI (1430), gave the said manor to John Hyll and Cecyle his wife,

remainder to Thomas, son of John Hyll and his heirs, and failing them to the

right heirs of John Hyll (Miscellanea Genealogica et Heraldica, Vol iii, second

series, page 1 12). This was John Hyll, of Spaxton (grandson of Sir John Hyll
before mentioned), ob. 14th October, 1434, married Cecily, daughter and coheir

of John Stourton, of Preston, Somerset, ob. 19th April, 1472.

IX.—^DUter i^totetf), of Doniford, 30 Henry VI (1455).

He married 3|of)anna, daughter and coheir of John Avenell,

of Blackpoole, in the parish of Southmolton, in the county of

Devon.
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Note.—The pedigree of Huysh in the Visitation of Somer-

set, and that in Mr. Palmer's MS. in the Dowager Lady

Acland's possession at Bath, state that Oliver Huysh married

Johanna, daughter and heir of Richards. This appears to be

an error arising from a family of Richards, of Somersetshire

and Devon, having borne the arms of Avenell. It is probable

that they adopted them in consequence of the marriage of

their ancestor Edward Richards, with Eleanor, one of the

daughters and coheirs of John Avenell, of Loxbeare, in

Devon. Edward Richards died, it appears, by inquisition,

10th Oct., 5 Henry VIII (1514).

The statement in the text is in accordance with the old

family pedigree found at Sand, which calls her coheir of

Avenell with her sisters, wives of Weekes (or Wykes), and Hol-

combe ; and this is corroborated by the pedigrees of Weekes

or Wykes, and those of Holcombe, and by the following Inqui-

sitions post mortem.

Richard Wykes, of North Wykes, county of Devon, married

Elizabeth, daughter and coheir of John Avenell, of Black-

poole. By inquisition taken after the death of his son,

William Wykes, who died last day of March, 14 Henry VIII

(1523), it appears that he held a third of Blackpoole, under

the manor of Warkley.

Roger Holcombe married Margaret, another coheir. By
inquisition taken after the death of Margaret Holcombe, who

died 7th April, 15 Henry VII (1502), it appears she held a

third of Blackpoole of the Bourchiers, Lords of the manor of

Warkley. Her son Charles Holcombe died 2nd January, 19

Henry VIII (1528), and also among other lands held a third

of Blackpoole.

No positive proof has been found that Johanna, wife of

Oliver Huyshe, inherited a third of Blackpoole, as one of the

three coheiresses, but Risdon, on Southmolton (p. 307, ed.

1811) says, "Blackpole is a tything of Molton, where Pollard,

Gambon, and Huish, held lands ; some are of opinion that a

Vol. XLIII (Third Series, Vol. IIT), Part II. b
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manor divided between coheirs, each of them hath a manor."

This shews that the manor of Blackpole was divided into three

shares by the marriage of coheiresses, and that one share

continued in the name of Huish, after those of Wykes and

Holcombe were lost.

Oliver Hewish had issue (I) Oliver; (2) Elizabeth, wife

of John Dodington of Dodington; (3) Anne, wife of Alexan-

der Vernie, son by the third wife of John Vernie, of Fairfield,

county of Somerset.

Note.—The Avenells were a very antient Devonshire family. From Pole
we learn that William Avenell married Emma, one of the daughters of Baldwin
de Brionis, or de Sap, to whom the Conqueror gave the honour of Okehampton.
A Nicholas Avenell held Sheepwash, temp. Henry III (1216-72), and gave for

his arms on a seal circumscribed with his name, three eaglets displayed, two and
one. The main branch was seated at Loxbeare. Galfride de Avenell held Lox-
beare, temp. Henry II (1154 89). William Avenill presented to the living in 1285,

and John Avenill, " Lord of Lokkesbeare, " also in 1401. The family continued
there until one of the three ultimate coheiresses married Richards, whose son
James was joint holder of the land, temp. Henry VII (1485-1509). They bore for

their arms the coat displayed in the third and fourth shields in the window.
The third shield in the window at Sand is charged with argent, five fusils in

fess sable, between two colises gules (Avenell of Loxbeare), impaling argent, a
fess between three mens legs, sable (Gambon).

This implies that Avenell married a daughter and probably a coheiress of

Gambon, and their daughter married Huyshe. The Gambons were of Morystone,
or Morestone in Halberton from a remote period. Walter Gambon presented to

Bondleigh, 1316-17, and they had property and a residence at Blackpole in

Southmolton, where Bishop J ohn Grandison licensed Walter Gambon to have
an oratory for the celebration of Divine service there, 15th May, 1332. Walter
Gambon, domicellus presented to Bondleigh in 1401, and Bishop Stafford

licensed John Gambon and ldenia his wife to have an oratory within their

mansion of Moorstone in Halberton, 23rd January, 1405-6.

The fourth shield in the window, is Huyshe, impaling Avenell.

John Wood, of Asheridge in North Tawton, married Margaret, daughter of

Oliver Huish, and had issue John, who married Anne, daughter of William
Pollard of Horwood, with further descent (Pole).

In the Somerset Visitations, we find William Steyninge of Holnicote, married
Maud, daughter of John Wood, and heir to her mother, Margaret, daughter of

Oliver Huish, and if so, sister of John Wood the younger.
The sixth shield in the window is charged with Argent, a bat volant, on a

chief sable, three pallets of the field (Steyninge), impaling Huyshe.
The seventh shield in the window, although much mutilated, is Steyninge,

impaling Huyshe, apparently a duplicate of the sixth, and probably bore some
heraldic difference on the portion destroyed.

The Dodingtons were of Dodington, near Bridgwater. John Dodington,
who married Elizabeth Huyshe, was son and heir of John Dodington, and Mary
the daughter of John Payne of Hutton. They were living, 2 Richard 111, 1485.

The fifth shield in the window is Sable, three hunting horns argent, stringed

and garnished or. (Dodington), impaling Huyshe.
The pedigree of Verney, of Fairfield, in Stoke Courcy, is found in the

Visitations of Somerset for 1531 and 1573. No Alexander appears or John
with three wives, but they matched with Broughton, Gambou, and Sydenham,
similar to the Huyshes ; their arms, Argent, three fern leaves in fesse.
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X.— £DUber ^etotef), of Doniford, 10 Henry VII (1495),

married a CfttalMtff), and had issue (1) John Huyshe
\ (2)

Humphrey Hewish, from whom Huysh first of Sand ; (3)

Thomas Huysh, from whom Huysh of Taunton ; and (4) a

daughter who married Chichester, of Hawle, in Devon.

Note.—The eighth shield in the window is charged with Huyshe, impaling,

Sable, three bucks heads argent (Cavendish). Her descent has not been traced.

The ninth shield displays Sable, a chevron or, between three bucks heads
argent, attired or; impaling Huyshe. For a daughter's alliance, the dexter coat

being that of Broughton, of Samford-Bickford in Wembdon. Granted in 1591,

with crest, A spaniel sejant ermine.

Oliver Hewish was Escheator for Somerset, 19 Henry VIII, 1528.

Will of Thomas Broughton, of Sampford-Bickfield, in Wembdon, Esq., dated
20th August, 1579, proved 28th January, 1579-80, mentions his sons Robert,

George, Erasmus (he married Joan, daughter of John Haydon, of Devon), and
daughter Marie (wife of William Saunders), to be buried at Wembdon, "in
the Allye near unto my seate." Testator appears to have married thrice, (1)

Dorothy, daughter of John Cuffe
; (2) Alice, daughter of Robert Corborne, or

Cutbert, of Chester
; (3) Lucy, daughter of John Welch.

Will of Robert Broughton, his son and heir, of the same place, proved 20th
May, 1631. My daughters Jane (wife of James Clarke of Norton Fitzwarreni,

Elizabeth (wife, first to Wm. Frampton, of Moreton, Dorset, and there buried,

aged 43 ; and second to Thomas Hannam, of Wimborne-Minster, ob. 1652), to

be buried at Wembdon, near my wife. She was Gertrude, daughter of Richard
Cooper, of Winscombe.

The unnamed daughter probably married a son of Richard Chichester, the
first of Hall, by marriage with Thomasine, ob. 1503, daughter of Simon de Hall.

The alliance is not mentioned in the Visitations.

XL— 3|06tl l^efripglje, of Doniford, gentleman. His will is

dated 24th July, 1551, 5 Edward VI, and proved in the P.C.C.

8th February, 1552. He married (Bract, daughter of Richard
Walkon d, Esq. Her brother, Humphry Walrond, is men-

tioned in John HeAvyshe's will. They had issue—(1) William,

of whom hereafter; (2) Roger, ancestor of Huysh of Aller ;

(3) James, ancestor of Huyshe of London, Sand, and Clyst-

hidon, and two daughters; (4) Dorothy, married to Edward

Hensley, of Devon ; (5) Alice, married to John Borne.

Note.—Richard Walrond was probably a younger son of John Walrond the
younger, of Bovye, Devon, whose will was proved 14th May, 1567, by Joan, his
relict. To be buried at Seaton ; mentions his daughters, Elizabeth and Jane,
Edward and John his sons, Richard my youngest son, his brother Humphrey,
and cousin Humphrey.

John Hewyshe, by his will—to be buried at St. Decuman's—mentions his

eldest daughter, Dorothy, his youngest, Alice Borne ; his son Roger to be his

executor, and to him '

' my lease of my tenement in Donyford, which I had of

the grant and demise of one John Walton, and afterward confirmed by one
Robert Walton, gent., cousin and next heir of the said John Walton."
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The Hensley's were of Berrynarhour, in North Devon. John Hcnsley
married Margaret, daughter of Richard Chichester, of Hall, and had issue

Edward Hensley.

The tenth shield in the Sand window, the dexter coat, which was, doubtless,
Huyshe, is destroyed, but the impalement displays argent, three bulls' head*
cabossed sable, eyed and horned argent, a crescent gales for difference

(
Walrond,

of Hovey).

XII.— QflUUiftttt l^U^0l)C, of Doniford, Esq., married first,

(Ellttl, daughter of John Gaunt, of Dorset, Esq., and

secondly, 3|ol)flntta, daughter of John Sydenham, Esq. By
his first wife he had issue ( 1 )

Sylvester, of whom hereafter
;

(2) John; (3) Honora ; (4) Dorothy; and by his second; (5)

John Huyshe, ancestor of Huysh of Wells.

Note.—In the Somerset Visitation, 1623, Hewish quarters Gaunt (of Dorset,
in the Visitation, 1573, queried as Graunt of Somerset) Barry of six or and
azure, on a bend engrailed gules, three spear heads or ; and she is there called

Elizabeth. The crest of Huyshe is given as, an elephant's head couped azure
bezanUe, crowned or, and the fish in the shield as argent, finned and tailed, or.

There was a family named Gaunt or Agaunt, who were located at Nash, in

Rroadwinsor. Dorset, of which Hutchins says '
'it was anciently a manor, a

member of Mai*shwood, now a farm." It came to the Coplestones of Shipton-
Gorge (a parish near), a branch of the main descent of Coplestone, in Devon,
temp. Edw. IV, whose posterity long enjoyed it. 37 Henry VIII, 1546, John
Agaunt held this manor, and about 1516-7, Henry VIII, Anthony Beaushin,
married Margaret his daughter, but both appear to have been only lessees.

John Coplestone, of Nash, son of Nicholas of Shipton-Gorge, 28 Heiny VIII,

1537, married Margerie, daughter and coheir of John Gaunt, of Nash. From
the Visitations, we learn that William Hancock of Combe-Martin, Devon,
married Elizabeth, daughter and coheir of John de Gaunt of Lambert's Castle

—

a high hill with a British encampment on its summit, situate in the neigh-

bouring parish of Hawk church, but no residence there ; and George Knolles,

of Little-Hempston, Devon, married Elizabeth, daughter and coheir of John
Gaunt of Marchwood, Dorset. As these coheiresses had different names, and
were living about the same time, it is quite probable they were sisters. The
arms given also are the same.

Johanna (or query Dorothy) his second wife, was daughter of John Syden-
ham, Esq., of Combe, Somerset, ob. 1561, by his wife Elizabeth, daughter of

John Frank, of Allerbutler (?), Somerset. He was the son of Edward Syden-
ham, Esq., by Joan, daughter of Walter Combe, of Combe, which Edward
was the son of John Sydenham by the heiress of Collyn, of Culmstock, in

Devon. Arms, Argent, three rams passant sable.

XIII.—&iib20ttt i^U^lj, of Doniford, Esq., 18 and 32

Elizabeth (1576-90), married &ltce, daughter of William
Norris, of Milverton, Esq., and had issue (1) William, of

whom hereafter
; (2) Giles, died 6th July, 1625 {see proceedings

of suit Wyndham v. Huysh, Court of Wards and Liveries) ;

(3) Amias, living 1599; (4) Elizabeth, living 1599; (5) John,

and (6) James, also mentioned in Mr. Palmer's MS.
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Note.—Westcote says: " John Norris of Gibhousein Winkleigh, Devon, had
issue, John of Splate in Somerset, and William of Milverton, who had issue

Johu, Richard, and Sylvester. John Norris, grandson of John of Splate is

described of St. Decumans, Somerset."
Will of William Norrice (Norris) of Milverton, Somerset, dated 9th June

(but query January), and proved 2nd November, 1573, by Elizabeth Norrice,

the relict (she was daughter of Baker, and testator was buried 20th January,

1573). To Alice my daughter " my white beare cupp of silver." My daughters
Elizabeth and Johan. My son-in-law Silvester Huishe. My daughter Huishe.

My sons John and Robert, etc.

XIV.—Mltlltam ^tUerfj. of Doniford, Esq. His nuncu-

pative will dated 11th October, 1599; proved 17th October,

1599. By inquisition, taken at Bridgwater, 16th January,

2 James I (1605), it appears he died 16th November, 42

Elizabeth (1600). He married (£lt5al)Ctj) Q^orffitll. Thomas

Morgan, of St. George's, Somerset, is the guardian of their

son, a minor.

Note.—The Morgans were of Easton-in- Gordano, or St. George's
; (36 Henry

VI [I, 1545) Richard Malet, of Enmore, and Joan his wife, sold the manor of

Easton to Richard Moi'gan and his heirs ; he died about 1559.

Administration of Richard Morgan (son of the above) of Easton-in Gordano,
granted to Dorothy Morgan his relict. 17th September, 1584.

Will of Dorothy Morgan of St. George's, Somerset, widow, proved 19th

June, 1599. To be buried in St George's. Mentions her sons Edward,
Richard, Thomas, and Arthur. My sou Hewish. My son-in-law, John Neth-
waye, and my daughter Ann his wife. Many monuments to them are in

Easton church, their arms sable,, three cross-crosslets in bend argent.

XV.—3|0ljn ^ttyertjC or ^Uttflj, of Doniford, aged seven

years at his father's decease. By inquisitio post mortem, taken

at Sowton, 2nd April, 4 Charles I (1629), it appears he died

2nd November, 3 Charles I (1628). He married ^[DtllT, daugh-

ter of John Mannings, of Hackland, in Cullompton, Devon,

by Dorothy, daughter of Sir John Strangeways, of Melbury,

Dorset, and Dorothy, daughter of Sir John Thynne, of Long-

leat, Knt. She had licence to re-marry from the Court of

Wards and Liveries, 30th November, 5 Charles I (1630), a

liberty she does not appear to have availed herself of, for ad-

ministration of the effects of Joan Huish was granted 15th

April, 1649, by the P.C.C. to her son, Edward Huish. They
had issue four sons, viz. :—(1) John, (2)' Edward, (3) William,

(4) Lewis.

Note.—There is the will of a Joan Huish, of Tuckerton in North Petherton,
widow, dated 12th September, 1638

;
proved 9th February, 1638-9, by Henry
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Bidygood. To be buried in West Monkton. My sister, Margaret Bidgegood
;

my children, Margaret, George, and William; Robert, son of William Huiehe /

Winifred, daughter of Roger Huishe.

XVI..— 3|0ljlt l?U^f) or ^tU0f), aged six years, ten months

and twenty-seven days at his father's death. He was baptized

at St. Decuman's, May, 1621. His will is dated 27th Novem-

ber, 1648, and proved 4th May, 1649. He makes no mention

of either wife or issue ; but from a monument at St. Decuman's

Church, which is much defaced, it appears probable that he

had a wife, 2DorOtI)£, Avho was buried 27th April, 164—

.

Note.—By his will, dated 27th November, 1648, proved 4th May, 1649, by
his brother Edward. To be buried in the south aisle of St. Decuman's Church.
Mentions his brothers William and Lewis, and twenty shillings to his cousin,

Ann Lucas, for a ring.

DONIFORD.
Collinson thus describes the descent of Doniford :

— " In the time of Henry II

(1154—89), Richard Fitzurse granted this manor to William de Reigni, before
which grant it had been part of his demesne. In this family of Reigni, who
lived at Asholt, in the hundred of Cannington, it continued till 6 Edward II

(1318), being held by the service of a whole knight's fee and suit of court twice
a year, if required, of the families of Cantilupe and Hastings, lords of the manor
of Berwick. 8 Edward II (1315), it was, together with its appurtenances in

Watchet and Stogumber, jointly held by Nicholas de Barton, William de Horsi.

John Fraunceis, and John Crabbe, as heirs to William de Reigni, who died

5 Edward II (1312). All these shares continued in these families till 42 Edward
III (1369), when the part of Fraunceis became the property of Oliver de
Hewish."

The old house at Doniford—the cradle of the Huyshe family—which, to-

gether with the paternal estate there, this John Huysh, ob. 1648—9, is said to

have alienated to the Wyndhams, still exists ; it is of some size, but now
modernized to the extinction of almost all its antient features.

The massive oak front door, opening under a somewhat acutely pointed arch,

and apparently the oldest relic left, still hangs on its hinges, as solid and firm

as when first placed there. Several elliptic arched doorways occur within, and
the original walls are of great thickness. The most perfect portion remaining
is a transeptal end, extending a little beyond the main front, gabled, and with
two stone-mullioned and labelled windows of some size (similar to that found at

Sand) of early seventeenth century date. This part is now used as a cellar, but
one of the old chambers within exhibits an ornamental stuccoed cornice con-

tinued across the central beam. There are no arms, initials, or date discover-

able. Doniford is pleasantly situate about a mile east of Watchet and close on
the sea shore.

The monument to John Huysh, noted in the pedigree as having existed in

the parish church of St. Decuman's, has now totally disappeared, and no trace

of it discoverable after careful search.

The record on Edward Huish's gravestone at St. Cuthbert's, that "he departed

this life here at Wells " and was there buried, appears to confirm the information

that it was his brother, John Huysh, who disposed of Doniford, which had been
held by the family for nearly three centuries.

XVIL—(EtoarU ^tU#I}> of Doniford, Esq., baptized at

St. Decuman's, December, 1622 ; buried at St. Cuthbert's,

Wells, where his monument, a flat stone in the south aisle,

1
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yet remains. He died 16th August, and was buried the 19th,

1669. The arms on the stone are Huysh, impaling, a chevron

between three mullets pierced.

Note.—The flat stone still exists in the south aisle of St. Cuthbert's, but
exceedingly worn and frayed, and it was with the utmost difficulty the following

portion of the inscription could be recovered :

—

'
' Here resteth the body of Edward Hvish, of Doniford,
Esq., tvho departed this life here at Wells the (16) day of
Avgvst, 1669.

to live with me,

And I not <jood enovgh to dye with thee.

Behold thy life by me,
Who sometime was as thov,

A nd thov in time shalt be,

Bvt dvst as I am now."

Above the inscription is an hour-glass, etc., and faint traces of the shield

bearing Huish, impaling a chevron between three mullets, or cinquefoils. At the
base of the stone another and apparently later inscription has been cut, but too

denuded to be made out. There is a mournful cadence apparent in the inscrip-

tion and epitaph, which seems to point to the adverse fate then awaiting this,

the main stem of Huyshe, not only by the disposal of the family patrimony, but
its extinction also on the deaths of his two brothers, William and Lewis, of

whom no further particulars are recorded.

The impalement on the gravestone is similar to that of Sambourne, of Tims-
bury

—

argent, a chevron sable, between three mullets gules, pierced or.

XVIII.—afllUUam ^tU0lj, baptized March, 1623, at St.

Decuman's. According to Mr. Palmer, he it was who sold

the family estate to the Wyndhams in 1671. But this is cer-

tainly a mistake, for, according to the late Mr. Tripp, Lord

Egremont's steward, the Wyndham title shews that John was

the man who alienated the old paternal property.

xix.— £etote ^ut0l).

FIRST POSSESSOR OF SAND, IN SIDBURY, DEVON.

I.—^ttmpljrep ^etotelj, or ^Upetfj, second son of Oliver

Hewisli, of Doniford, married ^IflCQttft, daughter and coheir

of John Hawle, of High-Bray, in the parish of Southmolton,

Devon, and had issue (1) Henry Heivish, of whom hereafter
;

(2) John Huish, of Okeford, Devon. Will dated 12th March,
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31 Elizabeth (1589), proved at Barnstaple, May, 1589. He
married Wilmot, daughter of Roger Prescott, Esq., and relict

of Gregory Radford, of Okeford, Esq. Will dated 17th

January, 1604, and proved at Barnstaple, 6th March, 1604.

He died without issue. (3) Bartholomew Huishe, of Studley,

Devon, gentleman. Will dated 4th May, 1578, and proved at

Barnstaple, 9th June, same year. He had no issue by Mary,

his wife, who was relict of Veysie. (4) John Huyshe, who

died unmarried.

Note.—High-Bray is a distinct parish in North Devon. Hall is in the parish

of Bishops-Tawton, "where the name of Hall had formerly their residence,

but Simon de Halle, a man learned in the laws, procured this his ancestor's

dwelling to be his inheritance, and left it unto Thorn asine, his daughter, wife
of Richard Chichester, third son of Richard Chichester, of Ralegh."— (Pole).

Gregory Radford, of Oakford, in North Devon (son of Richard Radford, of

Oakford, and Joan, daughter of ... . Hill, alias Spurway), married Wilmot,
daughter of Roger Prescott, and by her had two sons—Richard, buried 1569,

and John, buried 1622.

II,— f£enr£ ^rtotgrf), or i^Upetf), aforesaid, purchased the

estate and dwelling of Sand, in the parish of Sidbury, Devon,

in 1560-1. By inquisition taken at Tiverton it appears that

he died 21st January previous. He was buried at Sidbury,

21st January, 1566. He married (Ellnt, daughter of John
Staveley, of East Buckland, in the county of Devon, Esq.,

by Joan, daughter and coheir of John Lapflode. She was

buried at Sidbury, 27th May, 1592. He had issue, three sons

and five daughters: (1) Thomas
; (2) Anthony, of both of

whom hereafter; (3) William Hewish, Rector of Kilkhampton,

in Cornwall. Will dated 5th January, 1610, proved in the

Bishop of Exeter's Court, 4th May, 1611. He married Joan,

daughter of William Perrie, and relict of Osborne, by whom
he had issue two daughters, Elizabeth, wife of William Weston,

and Nazar, wife of George Lippincott, of Wibbery, Devon.

(4) Ellen, wife of Richard Cooke, Esq., who had issue, Mary

and Ellen. (5) Joan, wife of William Stoford, of Ottery St.

Mary, and had issue. (6) Elizabeth, died without issue, first

married Peter Drayton, of Exeter (Schoolmaster), secondly

John Dottghtie, incumbent of Alphington. (7) Grace, married
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William Norreys, of Lyme, and had issue. (8) Jane, married

Richard Bcvys, of Exeter, and had issue. From her descend"

the Bevys, of Clist House, Dartmouth, and Barnstaple. Mr.

Westcote, in his pedigree of Devon families, No. 2297, MSS.

Harley, says she married secondly William Martin, Recorder

of Exeter.

SAND I.

Note.—The descent of the manor of Sand is thus stated by Pole. It was
granted about Henry II

s

a time (1216-72), by the Dean and Chapter of Exeter,

to William and Deodatus de Sand, from whom divers descents proceeded. In
the reign of Henry V (1413-22), Roger Tremayle had Over-Sand. To Roger
Tremayle and Margaret his wife, Bishop Stafford granted license for an oratory

in their house at Over-Sand, Sidbury, 25th January, 1418-19.

To him succeeded John, and to him Sir Thomas Tremayle, a Justice of the

Common Pleas, temp. Henry VII. Philip his son succeeded, who married

Jane, daughter of Nicholas Whiting, of Combe, in the adjoining parish of

Gittisham. They left a daughter Florence, married to Nicholas Ashley, and it

is probable from her, or her representatives, that Henry Huyshe purchased
Sand.

Sir Thomas Tremayle was knighted at the marriage of Prince Arthur, in

1501. He bore for his arms, quarterly, (1) A fess between three brogues, (2)

Trivett, (3) A chevron between three escallops argent (Parway).
The first shield of the series of twelve displayed in the hall windows at Sand

is charged with Tremayle, argent, a fess between three brogues (shoes) gules.

The adjoining manor of Stone, in Sidford, was held by the family of Trivett.

Prom the same source (Pole) we learn that R,oger Tremayle (as above) married
Margaret, daughter of John Trivett and Joan Farway, Joan her sister (?), to

whom the manor fell, married Roger Pym John Trivett was the son of Peter,

"who had a great part thereof," in King Edward Ill's time. The Pyms held
it for several generations, ultimately disposing of it to Periam, of Exeter. The
Somerset Visitation, 1531-73, gives Peter Trivett, of Chilton-Trivett, in Can-
nington, married Joan Farway, to him John, of Sidbury (a younger branch of

Trivett of Durborough, Collinson), and to him Peter, ob. s.p., and his sister

and heir married Roger Pym. The arms of Trivett (argent) a trivet (sable),
apparently, super-imposed by the arms of Pym (argent) an annulet (sable),

appear in a shield on a boss in the roof of the nave of Sidbury church.
Harcombe, another manor in Sidbury, was, according to Pole, "the inheri-

tance of William de Harcombe, temp. Edward I, and after, at the latter end of

King Edward III, Ralph Lapflode (of Lapflode, in Bridford) was owner thereof,

which left issue Jane, wife of John Staveley, and Sibil, wife of John Halse.
This land fell unto Staveley by partition, and Bartholomew Staveley sold the
same, and Rowland Huysh, of Sand, Esquire, hath bought a good part thereof
and enlarged his demesnes."

Ellen Staveley, the wife of Henry Huysh, was the grand-daughter and
coheir of John Lapflode—Bartholomew Staveley was her brother.

The arms of Lapflode, gules, a chevron betweeen three goats' heads erazed
argent, armed or, are on a shield in the windows of the hall at Sand, second in

the series, thus with that of Tremayle, indicating the acquisition of both manors
of Sand and Harcombe by Huyshe. The arms of Staveley do not appear.

Nazar, or Nazareth Huish, second daughter of the Rev. William Huish, of

Kilkhampton, married first George Lippincott, of Barnstaple, ob. 7th December,
1624, and secondly, in 1635, William Fauntleroy, of Fauntleroy Marsh, Dorset.

Richard Cooke, probably of Thome, near Ottery. The Stowfords of Ottery
were a younger branch of that family settled there. R. Norris, merchant,
Mayor of Lyme-Regis, 1597.

Vol. XLJII (Third Series, Vol III), Part II. c
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John Doughty, B.D., was Rector of Alphington, 1593—1637-8
;
patron Wil-

liam Bourchier, Earl of Bath. Richard Bevis, of Exeter, husband of Jane
Huish, was Sheriff 1591, Receiver 1592, Mayor 1602. He died during his

Mayoralty, 26th August, 1602. On a flat stone in St. Mary-Arches Church,
Exeter, is :

—

'
' Here lyeth the body of Richard Bevis who died Maior of thin

Cittie, and was buried .... of August, 1602. My habitation is in heaven."

William Martin (a descendant of the Martins of Athelhampton, Dorset),

second husband of Jane Huish, was elected Mayor for the residue of the year.

He was Steward 1571, Receiver 1583, Sheriff 1584, Mayor 1590 and 1602,

Recorder 1605. He was buried 12th April, 1617, at St. Petrock's, Exeter.

In St. Mary-Arches, Exeter, on a flat stone :

—

" Here lyeth Jane Bevis who was secondly married to William Marty

n

(the Recorder of this Citty) obiit . . . . 16 . .
."

The worthy Recorder appears to have taken to himself the wife, as well as

the office of the deceased Mayor. He was Recorder of Exeter, and a learned

historian. His biography is given in Princes' Worthies. Jane Bevis was his

second wife.

On a further partially obliterated stone

—

" widow of John Marshsall, Esq., and daughter of Richard
Beavis, Esq., died 7th January, 1630."

John Marshall was Mayor of Exeter in 1615.

Peter Beavis, Esq., Sheriff of Devon, 1653, the son probably of Richard
Beavis and Jane Huish, purchased the manor and manor house of Bishop's-

Clyst, in the parish of Sowton, from the Earl of Bedford. He died 27th
October, 1656, and was buried at Sowton. His descendants continued to reside

there until the death of Miss Ellery Beavis in 1801, when the estate was dis-

posed of to Thomas, Lord Graves. Their arms were

—

Azure, three close helmets

in profile argent, garnished or.

In the handsome oak-panelled bedroom at Sand, a portion of the head-board
and some carved figures, being parts of an old bedstead, have been preserved
and affixed to the panelling. On it is inscribed

H. HVYSHE.—E. HVYSHE.
Apparently for Henry Huyshe, ob. 1566, who first purchased Sand, and his

wife Ellen Stavely. This room has Ionic pilasters and a richly carved cornice,

the consoles with lion's heads. A lion sejant, sits on the newel-post of the old

circular solid oak-stepped staircase—there is a finely carved oak screen that

separates the hall from the front passage ; and an interesting old cupboard with
lockers, the doors ornamented with the linen pattern, and coeval with the

building of the house, is preserved. An immense crocodile hangs sprawling
against the passage wall ; the skull of an elk with huge horns, and another of

a red-deer are affixed to the carved hall skreen, all evidently of great age of

preservation. Relics of the period, when the olden owners of Sand had residence

here ; which appears to have ceased at the death of James Huvshe who died in

1724.

III.— ^TjjOtttaSt |£tU0j), aforesaid, he was of Axminster,

gentleman, 9th August, 39 Elizabeth, 1596, and died without

issue. He, together with his brother, Anthony, sold the two

estates of Higher and Lower Sand to their cousin, James

Huish, of London, 26 Elizabeth, 1583-4.
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IV.—&Utl)Orip l££tol£rl), aforesaid, was of Axminster : will

dated 17th June, 1598, and proved in the P.C.C. 5th December.

He married &ltC£, daughter of Turner, and relict of

Alexander Osborne. Administration of the effects o£ Alice

Hewishe, of Axminster, was granted in September, 1612, by

the Archdeacon of Exeter's Court, but owing to the careless

manner in which these records have been kept, the document

is not to be found. They had issue Henry.

V.—^Cnrp ^etot0lj, married pattella, eldest daughter

and coheir of William Symonds, of Exeter. She was

twice married afterwards ; to Richard Herbert, of Exeter, and

to Thomas Duke, of Exeter, who died 14th November, 1644.

She was buried in Salcombe Church, 3rd April, 1657. Her

will was proved in P.C.C, 10th December, 1657. They had

issue Soutlicott.

Note.—William Simonds, of Exeter (son of Thomas Simonds, of Taunton,
Somerset), married Alice, daughter of ... . Moore, of Bamton (Bothenhamp-
ton ?), in Dorset. There were three daughters coheiresses, Marcella, the eldest,

then wife of Richard Herbert, of Exeter (
Visitation, 1620). Arms of Simonds

—

PerJess dancetUe gules and argent, a pale counterchanged, three trefoils one and
two slipped of the first.

VI.— *5)0Utl)C0tt ^tU0l), of Exeter, who died unmarried.

Administration of his effects was granted by the P.C.C. to

his mother Marcella Duke, 18th June, 1642.

OF TAUNTON, SOMERSET.

I.—Thomas Huysh, third son of Oliver Hewish, of Doni-

ford, was, according to the family pedigree found at Sand, the

ancestor of the Huyshes, of Tetton, in the parish of Kingston,

and of " thos other- Huyshes about Taunton, and so of Richard

Huyshe loho lyeth buried in Taunton." There seems no reason

for doubting the truth of this statement. Richard Huyshe's
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Avill j)roves his affinity to the Huysh's of Doniford and Sand,

and the rest of the pedigree is confirmed by substantia]

evidence. The above named

II—l&tCljart) iHt^lj^ was of New Inn in 1589. He died

without issue, and bequeathed his property in the Black Friars,

London, and in Taunton, to trustees for the maintenance of

an Alms House in Taunton, for aged men, with preference to

any poor among his kindred, and for exhibitions at the Uni-

versities of Oxford and Cambridge to young men of his name

and kindred only, and in default of these, to young men born

in the counties of Somerset and Devon. The full particulars

of this charity are to be found in Vol. V. of the Charity

Commissioners Reports. The privileges thus attached to his

kindred make it an act of justice to record all that can be

gathered respecting his connexions. But no connected pedi-

gree of this branch of the family appears ever to have been

formed, and those interested in the enquiry must be referred

to the collections deposited in the Alms House by the Rev.

Francis Huyshe, and to some MSS. recently added to the

library of the College of Arms, where the result of an exami-

nation of wills and parish registers will be found. Richard

Huysh married (Ebbot, daughter of William Lovel, of

Bishops-Lydiard, in Somerset, Esq., and heir to her brother

John Lovel. She was relict of James Clarke, of Norton

Fitzwarren, Esq. Her will, where she is described as of

Norton Fitzwarren, was proved in the Archdeacon's Court,

Taunton, in 1628, but is lost. Richard Huysh died 23rd Feb.,

1615, and was buried in St. Mary Magdalen, Taunton, on

21st March following. A tablet to his memory with the arms

of Huysh and Avenell quarterly is fixed on the wall of the

south aisle of that church. By inquisition taken 14th July,

18 James I (1621), it appears his next heirs were Johanna,

wife of John Mounsteven
;
Margaret, wife of Henry Webber

;

and Thomazine, wife of John Cox—she being the daughter

and coheir of John Huish, son and heir of Richard Finish, son
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and heir of Robert Huish, brother of his father Thomas Huish.

This Thomas and Robert Hnish must have been sons of

Thomas Huish, third son of Oliver Hewish, and Thomas is

probably the Thomas Huysh buried in St. Mary Magdalen,

Taunton, 12th March, 1556, and Robert is probably the

Robert Huish whose will dated 28th November, 1558, was

proved in the Archdeacon's Court by his son Richard Huish.

Note.—Will of John Bond, of Taunton, gent., dated 14th June, 1612.—" I

have sold to Mr. Richard Huishe, of London, certaiu houses in Magdalyn Lane,

for a Hospital."

The testator was evidently the "learned John Bond, A.M.," born at Trull

in 1550, and who, according to Collinson, in 1579, was elected Master of the

Free School in Taunton. " He was educated at Winchester, and in 1569 entered

as student at New College, in Oxford, where he was highly esteemed for his

classical learning. He continued in the Mastership many years, and thence

sent into the world many eminent scholars. At length he turned his thoughts

to the study of physick, which after relinquishing his former employment, he
practised with much reputation. He died 3rd August, 1612, and was buried in

chancel of the church of St. Mary Magdalen, with the following inscription :

—

Qui medicus doctus, prudentis nomine clarus,

Eloquii splendor, Pieridumque decus.

Virtutis cultor, pietatis vixit amicus,

Hoc jacet in tumulo, spiritus alta tenet.''''

The fine character of a man
Who was a learned physician , renoumed by name for his skill,

Celebrated for oratory, and the ornament of the Muses.

A cultivator of virtue, he lived the friend of piety ;

He lies in this tomb, but his spirit occupies the heights above.

The gravestone to his memory has disappeared. Gilbert Sheldon, Archbishop
of Canterbury, was one of his scholars. He does not appear to have been form-

ally admitted a physician by diploma. He wrote several classical works.

These worthy men, Richard Huish and John Bond, were doubtless friends,

in sympathy with each other in good works, and three years only parted their

deaths.

Will of Richard Huish, of the precincts of the Blackfriars, London, dated
30th January, 1615. To be buried in the south aisle of St. Mary Magdalen's,

Taunton, with some memorial over me. A Hospital to be built for 13 poor
men—President of the same to be appointed by such of my name as shall be
heirs male of the house of Huyshe, now of Doniford, Somerset, and of Sand,

in Sidbury, Devon. Rowland Huish, of Sand, one of the Governors, to be my
Ex'or.

The monument to the memorj'- of Richard Huyshe in St. Mary Magdalen's,
Taunton, contains this inscription

—

Here under lyeth buried the body of Richard Huish, esquire, borne in

Taunton, a.nd aunciently descended of the familie of the Huyshes of Doni-
ford, in the countie of Somerset.

He founded the hospital in Mawdelyn-lane in Taunton, for thirteene poor
men, begunne by himself in his life-tyme, and finished by his executors after

his death. And for the reliefe of the said poore men, he gave by his last will,

one hundred and three pounds by the yeare for ever, yssuing out of certain

howses and tenements in the Black-Fryar-s, London.
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A nd also, by his sayd will he gave one hundred, pounds a yeare for ever,

owt of the sayd tenements, for the maintainance offyve schollars of Ids name
of Huysh and Kindred, at one or both of the Universitys of Oxford or Cam-
bridge : and dyed in the true fayth of Christ-Jesus, the 2'Hrd day of Feb.,

A'no Dom\ 1615.

These further wills relate apparently to the Taunton branch of the Huyshes.
Will of Robert Huish, of Taunton, Somerset, gent., dated 5th September,

and proved 8th December, 1635. To be buried in the Chancel. Toward the
repairs of the organ, 40/- To the Lady Ann Portman, of Orchard, a ring of

30/-, and the same to Robert Cuffe, Esq., and to Mary Hill, my daughter.
To my son, Alexander Hill, my Ex'or, £5. Robert Browne, of Taunton Castle,

Esq., overseer.

The Hills were of Poundisford Park, near Taunton.
Will of Robert Huish, of Luckham, Somerset, yeoman, dated 28th January,

1646
;
proved 29th May, 1647, by Edith Huish," relict. Mentions John and

Robert, the sons of my brother, John Huish. Jone Huish, widow. John
Doddington, my son-in-law. My brother-in law, Matthew Herring, of Dul-
verton.

Nuncupative will of Mary Huish, of Taunton St. James, Somerset, spinster,

15th July, 1650 ;
proved 14th September, 1650, by Jane Huish. Mentions her

mother, Marie ; the children of her uncle, Mark Huish
;
Agnes, wife of John

Cole.

OF NOTTINGHAM.

In this family there is a tradition that their ancestor having

joined in Monmouth's rebellion, fled instantly after the battle

of Sedgmoor, and that to escape the punishments inflicted by

Judge JefFerys on the adherents of the Duke's cause, he

altogether quitted his native place, Taunton, and settled at

Leicester. The arms of Huish and Avenell have been borne

quarterly by this family, and they possess a bible of the date,

1676, with the name "Elizabeth Huish, Taunton, Somerset-

shire" on the binding. These traditions coupled with the

coincidence of the rather uncommon Christian name of Mark

recurring with that of Robert at that precise period, afford

the strongest grounds for believing them to be of the same

race.

Mark Huish, of St. James's, Taunton, whose will was proved

in 1651, had issue a Robert Huish and a Mark Huish, the
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latter baptized 14th November, 1630 ; Robert Haish had a

son Mark baptized 18th June, 1654, born 25th May ; and a

son Robert baptized 1659. Future enquiries may decide

whether either of these was the Robert Huish, of Leicester,

who follows.

I.—Kolieit ^tUertj. or ^etoltfl), as it is sometimes spelled in

the Registers of St. Martin's and St. Nicholas, Leicester ; he

and his wife Sarah were living in 1729. He was married to

joHirdj Cooke, at St. Nicholas, Leicester, 30th April, 1693.

They had issue (1) Robert
; (2) Mark Hewisk, baptized at St.

Martin's, 20th January, 1695, buried at St. Nicholas's, 1729.

Will proved at York, 11th February, 1729. (3) John Hevrish,

died and buried September 1700, in St. Martin's Leicester.

(4) Elizabeth, baptized 15th September, 1697, at St. Martin's,

married 5th October, 1720, to John Weston, son of Richard

Weston, of Leicester, Alderman.

II.— Eofaert ^tU0lj aforesaid, baptized at St. Martin's,

Leicester, 4th March, 1694. He removed to Nottingham, of

which town he was Sheriff in 1736 ; Alderman in 1759; and

Mayor in 1760. He was buried in St. Nicholas, Nottingham.

Will proved at York, 23rd December, 1765, and in P.C.C.,

5 tli June, 1765. Married at Hugglescote, xiUCe, daughter of

Richard Weston, an Alderman of Leicester, and sister of

John Weston before mentioned, buried in St. Nicholas, Not-

tingham. By her who survived him he had issue ( 1 ) Robert,

unmarried, drowned on his passage to Guernsey ; (2) Mark, of

whom hereafter; (3) Elizabeth, wife of Nathaniel Denison, of

Dayhook, Notts, died in 1811, aged 90, leaving issue ; (4)

Alice, wife of John Davison, of Leicester, M.D., and had issue
;

(5) Mary, wife of Sir Robert Bewicke, of Close House,

Northumberland, Knt., and had issue ; (6) Anne, who died

unmarried.

III.— 9£arfc ^U12»6, of Nottingham, baptized 16th Decem-

ber, 1725, married at St. Philip's, Birmingham, 13th December,

1774, QfydXQtlVZt, daughter of Charles Stuart, of Birming-
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ham. She was born in 1752, and died 24th April, 1822. Mr.

Huish died 9th June, 1807, and was buried at St. Nicholas,

Nottingham. They had issue (1) Mark, of whom hereafter.

(2) Robert, author of The History of Bees, and various other

works. He married at St. George's, Southwark, 23rd August,

1805, Maria Petty, daughter of Robert Greening, Esq., of

H.M. Customs. They have issue, Robert, born 16th June,

1811 ; John, born 14th January, 1814; Calverly, born 26th

October, 1821; Margaret Eliza, born 11th May, 1806; Har-

riet Maria, born 5th December, 1807. (3) John, born 14th

July, 1780, died October 1823, buried at Sneinton, Notts ;

married at Willoughby, in the county of Leicester, in 1809.

Mary, daughter of Henry Norton Gamble, of Willoughby,

Capt. R.N. She died 30th April, 1825. They had issue,

John, born 17th March, 1813, now of Derby, solicitor; Mar-

cus, born 19th July, 1815
;
Mary, born 5th June, 1809, died

3rd October, 1821
; Margaret, born 27th October, 1810 ; Anne

Caroline, born 19th September, 1817 ;
Eliza, born 8th March,

1812. (4) Calverly, of Liverpool, merchant, born 15th July,

1786, married 26th May, 1809, Harriet, daughter of John

Youle, of Nottingham, Esq., they have issue, Calverly, born

27th April, 1817, died 18th September, 1818
;

Harriet, born

14th January, 1813; Margaret Anne, born 10th July, 1819.

(5) William, Lieutenant 6th Regiment Dragoons Carabineers,

born 1787, married at Manchester Mary Anne Taylor, died

3rd June, 1822, buried at Newington Butts. (6) Eliza, wife

of Francis Hart, of Nottingham, banker, born 1782, married

at St. Peter's, Nottingham, 1809, issue, Eliza, born 1810 ;

Frank, born 1816, died 26th April, 1836. (7) Margaret, born

1777, wife of J. B. Smith, Esq., of Newark. He died 1807,

married 9th November, 1806. Now of Bridgend House,

Nottingham. Issue, Joseph, born 1807, died 23rd July, 1823.

IV.—$®avk l^Uttflj, born 1st March, 1776, died 14th

January, 1833, and buried at St. Nicholas, Nottingham. A
Deputy Lieutenant for Nottinghamshire. Married at Work-
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sop, 5th August, 1799, (Eltja, daughter of John Gainsford,

of Worksop, Esq. She died in 1824. They had issue (1)

Mark; (2) Henry, died 1831 ; (3) Eliza, born 27th July, 1800;

(4) Margaret ; (5) Mary ; (6) Stuart—these all died young.

V.— Qpark ^tttertj, born 9th March, 1803, now (1837) a

Captain in the 74th Regiment Bengal Native Infantry.

OF WELLS, SOMERSET.

According to Mr. Palmer's MS. John Huyshe, son of

William Huyshe of Doniford by his second wife, was father

of the eminent divine Alexander Huish.

I.—&l£CtinDcr l^Utfifj). He was born in the parish of St.

Cuthbert's, at Wells. His birth appears to have been about

the year 1594, for according to his own testimony (vide Greek

Hymn in the Polyglot) he was sixty-three years of age in

1658. He was a Commoner of Magdalen Hall, Oxford, in

Ki09; P.A., 10th February, 1613; original scholar of Wad-
ham College, 20th April, 1613 ;

M.A., 17th December, 1616;

B.D., 2nd December, 1627. Presented to the Rectory of

Beckington, Somerset, in 1627, and to that of Hornblotton in

the same county by Thomas Milbourne, Esq., in February,

1638. Of this living he was dispossessed in 1650, but restored

to it in 1660, and 12th September same year, he wTas collated

to the Prebend of White Lackington, in Wells Cathedral, of

which he had the gift before the Rebellion. He died 15th

April, 1668, and was buried in the chancel of Beckington,

where a brief inscription was placed to his memory, which has

been copied by Collinson in his History of Somerset. His will

was proved on 6th June, 1668, in the P.C.C., by his relict

Deborah, who was his second wife. In the preface, he shortly

but earnestly expresses his thankfulness to God, for his res-

toration to his living.

Vol. XL/II (Third Series, Vol. Ill), Part II. d
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He was a man distinguished for theological learning, accu-

rate criticism, knowledge of languages, especially the oriental

tongues, sound divinity, and excellence in preaching, and he

was much celebrated among the learned throughout Europe.

The prominent part he took in the preparation of Walton's

Polyglot Bible, is gratefully acknowledged by Walton himself,

and subsequent critics have mentioned with praise, the accu-

racy and fidelity with which he executed his celebrated

Collation of the Alexandrian MS. of the Bible.

His sufferings during the Rebellion are evidence of more

than common attachment to the King, and of his exertions in

his cause. He was driven from one place to another, im-

prisoned for a few days at Chadfield, in Wilts, where he

narrowly escaped starvation, having been saved from perishing

by the pious but accidental care of some charitable persons,

and finally in 1650, was dispossessed of his living. By the

Royalist composition papers (in the State Paper Office), it

appears the value of his estate was ^40, on which a fine,

£13 6s. 8d., was imposed.

His writings are Musa Ruralis in Advent, Car. II, 4to.,

London, 1660 ; Lectures on the Lords Prayer, in Three Parts,

London, 1626. The notes of John Flavel having come into

his possession, he published them under the title of Tractatus

de Demonstratione Mcthodicus et Polemicus, Oxon., 1619.

He was twice married. By S^Cltg'Qt^t, his first wife, who

was buried at Beckington, 4th October, 1642 (1) Alexander,

of Avhom hereafter; (2) James, baptized 29th October, 1637,

living 1667
; (3) Margaret, wife of Thomas Milbourne, of

London, printer, who had issue. By 3D£ll0t*£ll), the relict of

Bryant, whose will was proved in the P.CO., 3rd June, 1671,

he had issue (1) Anne, baptized 29th February, 1643, living

1671 ; (2) Deborah, baptized 2nd May, 1645, buried January,

1645 ; (3) Dorothy, co-executrix with Anne of their mother's

will.
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Note.—On a flat stone in Beckington Church (Collinson) :

—

"Sub hoc saxo reconditum jacet corpus Alexandri Huish hujus ecclesice

olim rectoris, qui obijt decimo quinto die Aprilis, MDCLX VIII."

Walton's Polyglot Bible and the Lexicon is thus described :

—

"Biblia Sacra Polyglotta, compleclentia Textus Originates, Hebraicum
(cum Pentateucho Samaritano) Chaldaicum, Graecum Versionumque Anti-

quarum, Samaritanae, Graecae LXXII Interprelum, Chaldaicae, Syriacae,

Arabicae, JEthopicae, Vulgatae Latinae, cum omnium Translationibus

Latinis et A pparatu, Appandicibus, Tabulis, etc., edidit Brtanus Wal-
ton us, 1657. Castelli, Lexicon Heptaglotton, Heb., Chald., Syr.,

Samar., Aethiop., Arab., et Pers., cum omnium Gramaticis, 1686.

Six volumes folio of the Polyglot and two of the Lexicon—they contain por-

traits of Walton and Castell, and illustrations by Hollar—priced in a recent

bookseller's catalogue at fourteen guineas.

II.—8toantJCr ^lUflrt) aforesaid, baptized 6th December,

1632. By his wife SDorOtjj^, who was buried at Beckington,

8th August, 1656, he had issue (1) Alexander, baptized 21st

August, 1673; (2) Anthony, baptized 16th June, 1676; (3)

James, baptized 31st August, and buried loth March, 1681 ;

(4) Sarah, baptized 6th October, 1669, living 1670.

L—CRltoart) ^Utgtf), of Wells, Notary Public, will dated

4th March, 1623, and proved P.C.C., 14th June, 1624, buried

at St. Cuthbert's, 25th March, 1624. By his will he appears

to have been twice married. The marriage ring of his first

wife he leaves to his son James. His second wife who sur-

vived him was named CfjttjStti&tt. He had issue (1) James, of

whom below : (2) Alexander ; (3) Anthony
; (4) Edward,

living 1624-38; (5) Peternell, married at St. Cuthbert's, 14th

November, 1625, to Thomas Lowe, and she was living in 1638.

Note.—The occurrence of a daughter, Petronell, and of a

son, Alexander, at the same time, in two distinct families of

Huyshe, settled in the parish of St. Cuthbert's, seems so

highly improbable, that little or no doubt can be entertained

that the learned assistant of Walton was the Alexander here

mentioned as the brother of James, and of Petronella Rouse,

widow, in Alexander's will, being the Petronell, who is here

said to have married Thomas Lowe, in November 16th, 1625.

There is certainly, prima facie, a strong objection to the
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hypothesis of this James being brother of Alexander, Walton's

assistant, from the proof that Edward was the father of James,

but that John, son of William Huish, of Doniford, as stated

above, to be the father of Alexander.

This however rests solely on the authority of Mr. Palmer's

MS., where he probably had no document to depend upon.

Mr. Palmer may have mistaken John for Edward, or he may

have omitted a generation in his pedigree, and so if there were

this John the son of William of Doniford, he may have been

the grandfather of James and Walton's assistant.

Note.—By his will lie appears to have had another daughter, Jane. His
second wife and executrix was Christian, daughter of Anthony Godwin, of

Wookey, Somerset. She remarried Adrian Bower. Died in 1640, and was
buried at Brightwell, Berks.

2.— 31 ftttt£# ^tttgrf), aforesaid, Notary Public, and Registrar

to five Bishops of Bath and Wells. He died 10th February,

1639, aged 47, and was buried in the south aisle of the Cathe-

dral, where a flat stone to the memory of him, his wife, and

daughter, still remains. His will was proved P.C.C., 9th

April, 1640, and in it he mentions his brothers, the three sons

of his father above named. !s5)£itfr{), his relict married secondly

John Prickman, gentleman, and died 27th May, 1670, aged

73. They had issue (1) Edioard, baptized 3rd January, 1634
;

(2) James, baptized 1st November, 1637, probably the same

as buried in the Cathedral, 10th August, 1675 ; (3) Christian,

baptized 28th November, 1622
; (4) Martha, baptized 26th

December, 1623, dead in 1684 ; (5) Hester, baptized 8th April,

1625, query if same as buried 30th May following : (6) Bridget,

baptized 15th June, 1626 ; (7) Sarah, baptized 7th December,

1628, died 23rd January, 1694-5, in the sixty-sixth year of

her age, her will proved in the Bishop's Court, Wells, in 1695;

(8) Mary, wife of Broderick, had issue George Broderick,

living 1684.

There are now at Wells (1837) a poor family of Huishe,

who have lived in St. Cuthbert's parish, and are descended

from a Henry Huish of Warminster and Hillhouse, who died
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in 1726. A widow Huish, of Hillhouse, was buried 26th

September, 1610.

Note.—Around the edge of a flat stone in the south choir aisle of Wells
Cathedral :

—

" Deposilum Jacobi 1 1 uish notarii publici quinque hujus dioeceseos episco-

porum registrarii qui annum aetatis quadrayesimum septimum agens obiit

decimo die Februarii Anno Domini millesimo sexcentessimo tricessimo nono."

In the centre of the stone :

—

"Hie etiam sepulta est Sara primum praed' d'ni Huish dein d'ni Joh'is

Prickman gen' uxor, quae obiit 27° Mail anno D'ni, 1674. Aetat" suae 73.

Hie etiam jacet Sara Huish Jilia d'orum Jacobi et Sarae, quae obiit 23° die

Jarfrij anno D'ni 1694, aetatis suae 66°"

From the Cathedral Register—Burials—1674, May 27, Mrs. Sarah Prickman,
widow of Mr. John Prickman. 1694, February 1, Mrs. Sarah Huish. From
St. Cuthbert's Parish Register—Baptisms— 1620, January 29, Maud; 1626,

June 15, Bridget
; 1627, November 1, James ; 1632, March 20, Frances

; 1634,

January 8, Edward—the children of Mr. James and Sarah Huishe (Jewers).

On a monument in the cloisters of Wells Cathedral, to William Taylor, Esq.

,

ob. 13th August, 1776, and Catherine his wife, ob. 6th January, 1764, the arms
are, Ermine on a chief indented sable, three escallops or, for Taylor, quarterly,

with Huyshe.

OF ALLER, SOMERSET.

I.—IftOfJCr l^tUtfl), second son of John Hewyshe, of Doniford,

and Grace Walrond had issue (1) William; (2) Grace-, (3)

Elizabeth.

II—flfllUUam ^Upertje, of Aller, his will dated 9th June,

1611, proved in P.C.C., 12th June following, mentions his

sister Grace Parker, and his brother-in-law Nicholas Parker,

and his sister Elizabeth Blake. Also his sons (1) William;

(2) George; (3) John, and his daughter; (4) Grace, and his

sons-in-law, John Marshe and Nicholas Sellacke.

Note.—His will was dated, 8th May, 1611. Mentions his three sons Wil-
liam, George, and John, to his sister Elizabeth Blake, "20 nobles"—his sons-in-
law, John Marshe and Nicholas Sellacke ; his sister, Grace Parker, to her
husband Nicholas Parker, " a goulde ring.'"

III.—flfliUUam ^u^lje—
George Huyshe.—
John Huyshe.—
Note.—Will of Robert Boteler, of Old Cleeve, Esq., dated 17th May, 1635,

to my godson John Huishe, son of my brother-in-law George Huishe, 40/-.

George Huishe, Overseer.
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OF LONDON, SAND, AND CLYSTIIIDON.

I.
—

'J £111100 ^ 11^01)0 aforesaid, third and youngest son of John

II ivyshe, of Doniford, and Grace Walrond, was sometime of

Cheapside, London, and a member of the Grocers' Company.

He died 20th August, 1590, and was buried in St. Pancras,

Soper Lane. His will dated 7th July, 1590, was proved in

P.C.C., 27th October, 1590. His monumental inscription is

preserved in Stow's London. By his first wife he had eleven

children, and by his second wife eighteen. Of these Rowland,

William, James, and Thomas are the only sons named in his

will, and the others here recorded are taken from the parish

register of St. Pancras, Soper Lane. His first wife was

^atgat^t, daughter and heir of Bowser or Bourchier, of

London. She was buried in St. Pancras Church, 12th May,

1568. On the cross in the Bourchier arms she bore a martlet

on a crescent by way of difference. By her he had issue (1)

Rowland, of whom hereafter
; (2) John, baptized 4th August,

1556, and died immediately; (3) Geffry Huysh, baptized 17th

August, 1561, he was living at the Visitation of London, 1568 ;

(4) Lawrence, baptized March, 1562, buried 28th May, 1564 ;

(5) Mary, baptized 7th September, 1554, married, 2nd Decem-

ber, 15— , Nicholas Pendlebury, and she was buried 29th April,

1616, they had issue ; (6) Anne baptized 3rd November, 1555 ;

(7) Sibil, baptized 7th November, 1557 ; (8) Grace, baptized

14th November, 1558 ; (9) Martha, baptized 28th October,

1565, buried 28th April, 1569. James Huyshe's second wife

was £Hpar£, daughter of William Moffyt, of Barnet, in

Herts. She died after having married two other husbands,

and was buried in St. Pancras, Soper Lane, 25th September,

1601. Her second husband was Sir William Rowe, Knt.,

Lord Mayor of London. He died 3rd October, 1593. His

will was proved 11th May, 1594, in P.C.C, and he was buried
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in St. Lawrence-Jewry, and left no issue by his second wife.

Her third husband's arms on the banners borne at her funeral

appear in the funeral certificates at the Heralds College,

argent, on a. chevron sable, between three martlets of the second,

three mullets or. By her he had issue (1) William, baptized

9th August, 1570—he was of the city of London, grocer, 33

Elizabeth (1591), and is styled of London, gentleman, 27th

November, 42 Elizabeth (1600); (2) James, baptized 20th

January, 1576—he was of Gray's Inn, Middlesex, gentleman,

22 November, 42 Elizabeth (1600), and was living 17th

December, 4 James I (1606). He was married, and his relict

had married in 1626 a Mr. Farrer. (3) John, baptized 20th

July, 1582
; (4) Thomas, baptized 17th July, 1583, of London,

gentleman, 42 Elizabeth (1600), and living 4 James I (1606)

;

(5) Christopher, baptized 21st June, 1584
; (6 ) John, baptized

and died immediately, 4th August, 1586
; (7) Elyn, baptized

9th October, 1572 ; (8) Alice, baptized 17th January, 1574

(unmarried 1590), wife of Robert Brett, Esq. Argent, a lion

rampant gules, between eight cross-crosslets Jitche of the second.

SAND II.

Note.—Higher and Lower Sand were first purchased in 1560-1 by Henry
Huyshe, eldest son of Humphrey Huyshe, the second son of Oliver Huyshe, of

Doniford, temp. Henry VII, of Thomas and Anthony Huyshe, of Axminster,
the elder sons of the aforesaid Henry Huyshe, who sold the both estates to

their cousin, James Huyshe, of London, 2b' Elizabeth, 1583-4. It is situate

about half-a-mile north of Sidbury.
The enormous number of children born to James Huyshe—eleven by his first

wife and eighteen by the second, in all twenty-nine — is a remarkable circum-
stance. The descent of Margaret, his first wife, has not beeu ascertained (there

was a large branch of the Bourchiers in Essex), but she is described as an
heiress, and the martlet on the crescent would imply from the fourth son of the
second house. The arms, argent, a cross engrailed yules, between four water
bougets sable, is the usual beariug of Bourchier, and occupies the third quarter
of the family shield at Sand, where it should be noted the arms of Huyshe are

also duly differenced both in the shield and on the crest by a mullet. The
eleventh shield in the window displays Huyshe impaling Bourchier. His second
wife, Mary Mofiit, after bearing her husband eighteeti children, after his decease
further adventured twice into the bonds of matrimony, capturing the Lord
Mayor of the great city for one of them.

The thirteenth shield in the hall window at Sand displays the arms recorded :

Argent, semee of cross-crosslets Jitche'e and a lion rampant gules, impaling Huyshe,
of Sand, being the arms of Brett, of Pillond, in Pilton, North Devon, and relate

to the alliance of Alice, their youngest daughter, with Robert Brett.

The tuelfth shield in the window is Huyshe impaling, argent, a lion rampant
sable, between eight escallops in orle gules, for Mary, the second, wife of James
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Huyshe, daughter of William Moffett, of Chipping-Barnct, Hertfordshire, to
whom these arms were granted, 10th May, 1585.

Stow speaks of St. Paneras, Soper Lane, as " a proper small church, but
divers rich parishioners therein," and the edifice was apparently going to decay
and neglected in bis day. The inscription was found on " a fair monument in

the north wall of the quire" :

—

"Here under lieth buried James Huysh, Citizen and Grocer, of London,
third son of John finish, of Beanford (sic), in the County of Somerset, Esq.,

which James had to his first Wife, Margaret Bourchier, by whom he had
Issue eleven children : And to his second Wife, Mary Moffett, by whom he
had Issue eighteen Children. He died the 20th Day of August, Ann. Dom.,
1590.

Hac defunctus Huysh tenui sub mole quiescit

Nec tamen hac totus mole quiescit Huysh.
Corpus in est Tumulo, colit aurea spiritus astra

Scilicet hunc caelum vendica.t, Mud humus.
Londinensis erat Civis dum Fata sinebant,

Jam cum sidereo milite miles agit.

Bis Thalami sociam duxit ; Prior edidit illi

Undenas Proles, altera bisq: novem.
Munificam per swpe manum porrexit egenis,

Virtutum fautor, Pieridumq : fuit.

Nil opus est plures illi contexere laudes ;

Sufficit in Coelojam reperisse locum. "

Which may be rendered :

" Under this narrow mound rests departed Huysh, yet not all of Huysh
rests in this mound ; his body is in the tomb, his spirit inhabits the golden
stars ; heaven indeed claims the latter, earth the former. He was a citizen

of London, whilst the Fates permitted, now as a soldier he abides with the

starry host. Twice was he married : his first wife bare to him a progeny of
eleven, his second twice nine. He very often extended a generous hand to the

needy, and was a patron of the Virtues and the Muses. There is no need to

entwine more praise to him: it suffices that in heaven he has now found a
place.

Sir William Rowe, the second husband of Mary Moffet, was Lord Mayor in

1592. A Sir Thomas Roe, or Rowe, was Lord Mayor in 1568, knighted in

1569 ; and a Sir Henry Rowe, Lord Mayor, 1607, knighted at Whitehall, 1603.

Sir Thomas bore for his arms, Argent, on a chevron azure, between three trefoils

slipped per pale gules and vert, as many bezants, with crest

—

a stag's head gules,

attired or. These arms appear to have been borne by all three, who were prob-
ably members of the same family.

There was a descent of Rowe located at Kingston, in Staverton, Devon, who
bore the same arms and crest. Their ancestors appear, from the Visitations, to

have belonged to Kent, whose descendant, John Rowe, of Totnes, Serviens ad
legem, tempore Henry VIII, ob. 1544, married Agnes, daughter and coheir of

William Barnhouse, of Kingston. Prince includes him among his Worthies.

Sergeant Rowe was succeeded at Kingston by his son, John Rowe, ob. 1592.

They were a family of good position in the county : extinct apparently early in

the eighteenth century.

The arms given of the third husband of Mary Moffet, on the funeral certifi-

cate, are those assigned to Madeston, granted in 1587, with crest

—

a cubit arm
erect in armour, per pale crenelle, or and argent, holding in the gauntlet a halbert,

headed and garnished of the last.

II.— IftOtolanll ^U££rf)e, aforesaid, baptized 11th April,

1560. This name was given him after Sir Rowland Hill, who

was one of his godfathers. He was sometime of South Brent,
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in Somersetshire, and afterwards of Sand in the parish of Sid-

bury, Devon. He had livery o£ his father's lands, 8th June,

33 Elizabeth (1591). By inquisition taken at Sherborne, 29th

August, 9 Charles I (1634), it appears he died 19th January,

8 Charles I (1631-2). Administration to his effects was

granted in 1632 to his son James by the Dean and Chapter's

Court, Exeter. He was buried at Sidbury, 7th February,

1632. He married &ntie, daughter of John Wentworth,

of Booking, in Essex, by Elizabeth, daughter of Sir Edward

Capel, Knt. She, through Spencer and Clare was descended

from Edward I. She was buried at Sidbury, 7th October,

1629. They had issue one son Ja?nes, of whom below.

Note.—The appearance of King Philip's badge, temp. 1553-8, among the

stained glass, apparently points to its being a relic preserved from a former
building, as Sand was not purchased by Huyshe until 1560-1. James Huyshe
probably commenced the building of the present house, and his son, Rowland,
completed the structure ; as on one of the gables of the outbuildings are the

initials

—

R. A. #.—1600.

marking, it may be assumed, the period of its completion. James Huyhse died

in 1590, and the heraldic succession of the smaller shields ends with the impale-

ment of his second wife ; Rowland Huyshe's alliance also occurs of larger size,

and the family escutcheon of four quarterings is dated 1594.

It should be added this interesting series of shields has greatly suffered in

dilapidation since a description taken of them about ten years ago, and referred

to in these notes—apparently all have been re-set and the original sequence
disturbed.

In the garden at Sand was a gateway—now dilapidated—and over it a sculp-

tured shield of arms, which has been preserved, and is now re-set over another
gateway. It displays quarterly of six :— 1. A lion between three crosslets ftehee

(Capell). 2. A chevron between three roundels, on a chief a fret between two
cinque/oils (Capell). 3. On a chevron three garbs (Newton). 4. A chevron
ermine between three escallops (Chedder). 5. A chevron between three fleurs-de-

lys
(
Dexwell). 6. Sem4e of cross-crosslets, a lion rampant, croioned. Under-

neath

—

" HORTVS JOHANNJS CAPELL, 1610."

The heraldry is interesting. Sir William Capel, an eminent merchant and of

vast estate in London ; Lord Mayor, 1503
;
knighted at the coronation of Henry

VII, of Rayne Hall, Essex, ob. 6th September, 1515 ; was succeeded by his son,

Sir Giles, Sheriff of Essex, 1528. He married Isabel, daughter of Richard
Newton, ob. 1501, son of Sir John Newton, of East Harptree, buried at Yatton,
1488, by his wife Elizabeth, ob. 1498, daughter of Thomas Chedder and Isabel
Scobahull, both buried at Cheddar. He was succeeded by their second son, Sir

Edward Capel, ob. 1577, who was followed by his second son, Sir Henry,
Sheriff of Essex, 1579, ob. 1588. His second wife was Katherine, fourth
daughter of Thos. Manners, Earl of Rutland, by whom he had six sons and
four daughters. John Capel (of the arms) was his fourth son. An exact dup-
licate of this shield occurs on the tomb of his next younger brother, Sir
Gamaliel, ob. 1613, in Abbots-Roothing Church, Essex. Lysons says this John
Capel was cousin-german to Anne Wentworth, Rowland Huyshe's wife.

Vol. XLIII (Third Series, Vol. Ill), Part II.
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The Wentworths were a branch of that large and influential family, settled

in the three adjoining parishes of Wethersheld, Cosfield, and Boeking, in Essex.
Sir Roger Wentworth, Knt. , of Codham Hall, and jure uxoris, of Gosfield,

Sheriff of Essex and Herts, 1499, ob. 1539, with his wife, Anne Tyrell, ob. 1534,

a great heiress, are both buried in Wetherstield Church, where is their fine

altar tomb and recumbent effigies. They quarter He Spencer in their arms.
Roger Wentworth, their third son, was of Eelsted. and afterward of Booking,
which manor, in 1540, was granted to him by Henry VIII, on the suppression
of the Priory of St. Saviour's, Canterbury, to which it belonged. He had two
wives—Mary, and the second, Alice, daughter of William Buckford. He died
in 1557, and was buried at Booking. He was succeeded by his son, John
Wentworth, of Hocking, born 1535, died 1603. He married Elizabeth, daugh-
ter of Sir Edward Capel, of Hadham, county of Hertford. They had two chil-

dren—Edward Wentworth, of Booking, born 1573, died 1616 ; and Anne, the
wife of Rowland Huyshe, of Sand, in Sidbury, Devon. They differenced their

arms with a crescent. This royal descent wiJl be further referred to.

The shield representing this alliance, Huyshe impaling Wentworth, of larger

size, also occurs in the hall window.
In a corner of the garden is an old summer or pleasance house, the usual

adjunct of this era. It is entered beneath a pillared archway, within, opposite
the doorway is apparently the remains of a bay window or fireplace, and an
arched aumbry or recess occurs in one of the side walls. The little building

now shares the fate generally reserved for these antient haunts of squire and
dame, being used as a storehouse for farm lumber. Without, in the back gable,

in an ornamental panel, are the arms of Huyshe ; and over the entrance from
the garden the escutcheon of Rowland Huyshe, differenced with the mullet, im-
paling, a chevron between three leopards' heads, a crescent for difference, for his

wife, Anne Wentworth.
Below the arms in a sculptured panel is this beautiful inscription :

—

EYOYMIA2 • FONS • BENE • CONVENIRE • CVM • DEO
which tells us that although

The hand that placed those words is gone,

His presence is with us to-day
;

No strangers tread these paths alone,

With them his spirit walks alway.

And thou, who dost the import scan,

That lives within the crumbling words,
Sees there the image of the man,
More true than subtlest art affords :

—

• Who bids thee to remember this,

Though sweet these odours from the sod,
" The fountain of true fragrance is

To be in fellowship with God. '

Formerly in the window of the stairway, but now removed to that in the

hall, is the pomegranate with regal crown, and the initials K.P., for King Philip

of Spain, the husband of Queen Mary, and her medallion doubtless originally

accompanied it. The quartered shield of Huyshe is also sculptured over the
entrance porch.

Sir Rowland Hill, godfather of Rowland Huyshe, born in 1560, was presum-
ably the son of Thomas Hill, of Malpas and Hodnet, and is described as having
been "the first Protestant Lord Mayor of London, 4 Edward VI, 1551, one of

the richest and most considerable merchants of his time. He did great acts of

generosity, was an eminent benefactor to the public, founded Drayton and other

free schools, built Stoke and Hodnet churches, Atcham and Terne bridges, at his

own expense, and left his large acquisitions among his four sisters, his coheirs,

Agnes, Jone, Jane, and Elizabeth." He appears to have been the first of his

race called Rowland, a name perpetuated in the Huyshe family, and also by the
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present Viscounts Hill, who descend from Rowland Hill, of Hawkestone, the

son of Humphrey Hill, the nephew of the Lord Mayor. Sir Rowland was
knighted between 1537-42, and bore for his arms —Azure, two bars argent, on a
canton sable, a chevron between three pheons argent, on the chevron, a hind's head
erazed azure, between two mullets of the third. Crest

—

A hind's head crazed azure,

collared argent, in the mouth a trefoil, slipped vert. Granted Sir Rowland Hill

by Thomas Tonge, Clarencieux, 8th November, 26 Henry VIII, 1535. The
bearing on the canton, less the charge on the chevron, appears as one of the
quarterings on the escutcheon of Viscount Hill (1872), being the arms of Malpas.

III.— 31ame^ ^UptfljC, of Sand. He was twenty-four years

of age at his father's decease, and had livery of his father's

lands granted him 25th June, 10 Charles I, 1634. He engaged

most actively in support of the Royal cause in the Rebellion,

making great sacrifices of his private fortune. The estates he

had inherited from his wealthy and industrious grandfather,

were, some sold, and on the remainder a fine was imposed of a

tenth, viz. £283. By the Royalist Composition Papers it

appears he took up arms against the Parliament, laid them

down in 1643, and compounded in 1646. He was appointed

a Captain in the Militia of Foot in East Devon, raised by the

Duke of Albemarle, 29th January, 1660. He was baptized at

Sidbury 2nd May, 1604, and buried there 26th May, 1681.

He married ^Debonij), daughter of Richard Reynell, of

Credy-Wiger, in Devon, Esq., by Mary, daughter and coheir

of Sir John Peryam, Knt. She was coheir of her brother

Peryam Reynell, and through this match the manor and ad-

vowson of Clysthidon came to the Huyshe family. The old

family toast at Ogwell commemorates his connexions

—

" Fulford, Otterton, Credy, Clysthidon, and Sand,
And all our relations by sea and by land."

By her he had issue four sons and seven daughters : (1) James,

of whom hereafter; (2) John, baptized 26th February, 1634-5,

he was a merchant of Dublin in 1668, and died unmarried at

Barbadoes
; (3) Rowland, baptized 21st September, 1636,

buried 28th November, 1638
; (4) Richard, of whom hereafter;

(5) Anne, baptized 9th May, 1625, married John Vernon, Esq.

He was a Captain in the Parliamentary army and obtained

the estate of Clontarf of Oliver Cromwell. Of this he was
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dispossessed in favour of Edward Vernon, by Charles II.

They had issue John Vernon, sometime of Dublin. Will

dated 24th December, 1718, and proved in P.C.C., 14th

November, 1720. She married secondly Courtenay, (6) Mary,

baptized 1st March, 1626, died in Dublin before 1657, wife of

William Allen, Adjutant-General in Ireland, living 1657, when

he dates from Sand the preface to his Memoir of Deborah

Huish. In the British Museum there is a copy of a curious

pamphlet of his writing, A Memorial of a remarkable meeting

of many Officers at Windsor, in 1648, London, 1659, quarto,

69 pages. In Thurlow's State Papers is an account of his

being arrested at his father-in-law's house at Sand, on sus-

picion of plotting against the Government, as appears by his

letter to the Protector. They had a child. (7) Deborah, bap-

tized 5th September, 1628, buried 21st August, 1661. In the

British Museum there is a curious book written by her brother-

in-law, General Allen, in which he gives an account of her

most melancholy state of religious despondency for several

years, and of her recovery to a true view of the Christian

faith, according to his own tenets. The title of the book is

The Captive taken from the Strong, London, Chapman, 12mo.,

1668. (8) Rebecca, baptized 20th January, 1632, married at

Sidbury 26th June, 1663-4, Elijah Dene, rector of Clysthidon,

and buried there 27th July, 1670. (9) Jael, baptized 24th

December, 1642, married 2nd February, 1663, Francis Drake,

of Ide, merchant. (10) Tryphena, baptized 5th February,

1645-6, wife of John Gay, of Frithelstock, died 1731. (11)

Sarah, who died young.

CREDY-WIGER AND CLYSTHIDON.
Note.—Credy-Wiger, near Crediton, says Pole (who was nearly related by

marriage to its first owner of the Periains) "was sold by Thomas Prideaux, of

Nutwell, Esq., unto Sir William Periam, Knt., which built a fair dwelling-

house, and left'it to descend unto his four daughters, Mary my wife, (and three

others named), which have sold it to John Periam, of Exeter, Esq. (he was not
a knight), brother to Sir William Periam aforesaid, which hath left it unto his

eldest daughter, Mary, wife of Richard Reynell, Esq., younger son of (George)

Reynell, of Malston (in Sherford, South Devon), which have made it their

dwelling-house." Deborah, their fifth daughter was married to James Huyshe,
13 August, 1621.
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Of Clysthidon, the same authority remarks, " Gabriel St. Clere sold the

same to Edmond Parker, Esq., his brother-in-law, who sold the same to John
Periam, Esq., of Exeter, who gave it unto Mary his eldest daughter, wife of

Richard Reynell, of Credy-Wiger, Esq., lately deceased." He was a Bencher

of the Inner Temple. Their arms, Argent, masonry sable, a chief indented of
the second. Pole notes, of Malston, "a crescent for difference," of Credy-

Wiger, " a crescent and a rose."

On monuments in Sherford Church :

—

"Here lyeth the body of George Reynell, of Malston, Esquire, who died

the 8lh day of Aprill, An'o Domini, 1643."

" In gratam Elizabethae memoriam filiae Petri Specott de Thornbury,
Armigeri, nuptae Georgii Reynell de Malston, Armigeri, quae obiit vicesimo

secundo die Mai) Arf Dom' 1662."

Arms—Specott—Reynell impaling Specott, and Reynell. Crest, a fox passant.

The St. Cleres evidently built the south aisle of Clysthidon Church, where
their arms occur on the capital of the western respond of the arcade, and on a

boss outside at the east corner. The entrance porch of this aisle is finely

groined, and on the keystone of the outer arch is an angel holding a shield,

quarterly of four (1) A sun (St. Clere)
; (2) a fess between three griffins' heads

erazed (Halse)
; (3) a fess engrailed between three mullets pierced (Tibwell)

; (4)

Three roundels, a label of three (Hidon).

St. Clere inherited Clysthidon by marriage with the heiress of Hidon. Halse
and Tidwell represent other matches of St. Clere. Gabriel St. Clere appears to

have dissipated the family estates, and Pole gives a curious account of his

proceedings anent. The Halses were of Kenedon, an estate and manor house,

in Sherford, not far from Malston. It should be noted that Periam acquired
also the manor of Stone, adjoining Sand, in Sidbury. On a flat stone in the
chancel of Clysthidon :

—

"Here lieth ye body of Elijah Dene, late Rector of this Church, who died

ye 10 day of May, A nno Dom., 1703. And also the body of Mary his wife,

who died 26th September, Anno Dom., 1701. Together with ye bodyes of
Dorothy, John, Thomas, and Elijah their children."

Probably of the family of Dene, of Newton St. Petrock and Horwood, in

North Devon, their arms, Argent, a lion rampant purpure. Rebecca Huyshe
must have been his first wife.

The Periams were> eminent citizens and merchants of Exeter, for three
generations. William Periam was Mayor, 1532—John, his son, Mayor 1563
and 1572—he had two sons. The eldest, William, became successively a Jus-
tice of the Common Pleas, and Lord Chief Baron of the Exchequer. He died
in 1605, and is buried in Crediton Church, under a fine monument, whereon is

his recumbent effigy. John, his brother, mayor, 1587 and 1598, acquired Credy-
Wiger from his four nieces, the daughters and coheiresses of his brother, Sir

William. By his first wife, Elizabeth, daughter of Roger Prideaux, of Soldon,
he had three daughters, and to the eldest, Mary, the wife of Richard Reynell,
he gave Credy-Wiger and other property. His portrait, dated 1616, hangs in

the Guildhall at Exeter, and another in Exeter College, Oxford, to which he
was a benefactor. A small portrait of Sir William, the Lord Chief Baron, is

in the National Portrait Gallery.

On a panel outside between two upper windows at Sand, are the initials

—

I. D. H.— 1673.

which evidently refer to James Huyshe and his wife, Deborah Reynell.
In 33 Elizabeth, 1591, Rowland, son and heir of James Huish, citizen and

grocer, of London, purchased one third of the manor of East Ringsted (in Os-
mington, Dorset), of Andrew Rogers, value four pounds. This family seems
afterward to have possessed the whole farm, for in 1646, Mr. (James) Huislrs
farm here was sequestered. They also held Middle Ringsted. It was pur-
chased of — Huish, Esq., by Awnsham Churchill, Esq. (Hutchins).
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John flay, eldest son of .John Oay, of Frithelstock, ob. 1 67S, and Joan, daughter
of John Smith, of Torrington

;
baptized 24th November, 1089, at Barnstaple

;

matriculated Kxeter College, Oxford. 3rd April, 1661 ; B.A. 15th October, 1664;
buried at Frithelstock, 25th January, 1716-17. His wife, Tryphena, daughter
of James Huish, of Sand, died 6th and buried 10th May, 1731, at Frithelstock.
They had issue three sons and four daughters

(
Visitations, Vivian).

IV.—3|attte0 ^Uygty, eldest son, was of Sand, baptized

loth July, 1630, and buried 5th June, 1708 ; will proved in

Dean and Chapter's Court, Exeter ; he married 25th July,

1684, at Seaton, flllrit}), daughter of Edmond Walkond, of

Bovey, Esq. She was baptized 29th June, 1652 ; will dated

1st December, 1710; proved Dean and Chapter's Court, Exe-

ter, 16th December, 1716. They had issue one son and four

daughters (1) James, of whom hereafter; (2) Deborah, bap-

tized at Seaton, 4th November, 1685, married John Woolcot,

of Bossel, in Sidbury, and issue from whom descends the

present James Huyshe Woolcot
; (3) Anne, baptized at Sid-

bury, 15th September, 1687, and died ; (4) Mary, baptized 3rd

July, 1691, married the Rev. William Symons, vicar of Otter-

ton, and had issue John Symons, of Heavitree, James Symons,

vicar of Broadhembury, and two daughters, who all died with-

out issue ; (5) Urith, baptized at Sidbury 25th July, 1693.

Note.—Urith Walrond was great grand-daughter of Sir William Pole, the
Antiquary. She was probably called after Urith Shapcote, the daughter of

Thomas Shapcote, of Exeter (by Urith, daugher of Henry Sothern, of Poughill,

Devon), and wife of Sir Courtenay Pole, Bart, of Shute, her father's first

cousin. A pleasant name, Saxon, for wreath or garland, adopted afterward by
several of the allied families of Pole, Trevelyan, and Walrond.

A sundial is affixed to the front of Sand house, on which is the motto

—

Sol Justit^e Obiatur. 1701.

" May the sun of righteousness arise"—below are the arms of Huyshe impaling
Walrond, for James Huyshe and his wife, Urith Walrond.

The Rev. William Symons, who married Mary Huyshe, was collated to

Otterton, 9th June, 1721 ; died 9th and was buried 12th October, 1782, aged
86, after serving his church sixty-two years.

V.—3|ame0 ^Upstf), of Sand, baptized 25th June, 1689,

buried 15th March, 1724 (at Sidbury); will proved in Bishop

of Exeter's Court, 4th June, 1725. He married Catherine,

daughter of ( William) Drake, of Yardbury, Colyton. They

had issue (1) James, baptized 31st March, 1717, buried 14th

April, same year
; (2) Anne, baptized 24th August, 1720, and

buried 6th May, 1721.
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Note.—Katherine Drake, the wife of James Huyshe, was the daughter of

William Drake, of Yardbury, Colyton, ob. 18th November, 1727, by his wife
Katherine, daughter and coheir of John Pennington of Wicken Hall, Suffolk,

and Chiswell, in Essex. She died 15th December, 1730. The Drakes of Yard-
bury, descended from William Drake, second son of John Drake of Ash,
Musbury, ob. 1628, by his wife Dorothy, daughter of William Button, of Alton
Priors, Wilts.

The fifth bell in the tower at Sidbury bears the arms of Huyshe, and the
following inscription

—

"God bless the Queen and save the Church. James Huyshe, Henrey
Conent, Gent., Wardens, 1712, T.W.

T. W. is for Thomas Wroth, the bell-founder.

VI.— Iftldjart) ^U^0lje, aforesaid, was baptized November,

1638. He was a merchant of Dublin ; administration granted

to John Vernon, of Clontarf, his nephew, in 1673, 10th De-

cember, but set aside 9th November, 1704, and granted to his

son, Richard Huyshe. He married CEltnlbCtj), daughter of

More, of Queen's County. She died before her husband.

They had issue two sons (1) Richard, (2) Francis.

VII.— KtCljitrtl l£up0fjC. He was, with his brother, left

an orphan at an early age. He succeeded to the Sand estate

on the death of his cousin, James Huyshe. He resided in St.

Martin's-in-the-Fields, Westminster, at the date of his will,

6th December, 1726, which was proved in P.CO., 15th De-

cember, 1726. He married ^ariilnXtC. relict of Synot, but

died without issue.

VIII.— jfranritf ^upslje, born 6th May, 1672 ; M.A.,

Trinity College, Dublin, 12th July, 1698; Rector of Clyst-

hidon, September, 1703 ; died 9th February, 1764; will proved

P.C.C., 10th August, 1765 ; married 16th August, 1706, jE5>araf),

daughter of Richard Newte, of Duvale, near Tiverton, in

Devon, son of the Rev. Richard Newte, Rector of Tiverton

{see Prince's Worthies of Devon). She died 19th March, 1747,

in her seventieth year. They had issue four sons and four

daughters (1) Richard, born 2nd January, 1709-10, died 24th

June, 1736, unmarried, of Balliol College, Oxford ; will proved

25th March, 1737, in the Bishop's Court, Exeter. (2) James,

(3) John, of both of whom hereafter; (4) Francis, born 17th

January, 1722-3, died at Barbadoes, October, 1740, unmarried
;
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(5) Elizabeth, born 17th January, 1711, died 12th November,

1731, unmarried, buried at Sidbury
; (6) Frances, born 20th

April, 1715, died at Exeter 12th April, 1797, buried at Sid-

bury, unmarried; (7) Jane, born 23rd June, 1720, died 23rd

October, 1802, unmarried ; (8) Sarah, born 3rd December,

1707, died at Exeter 2nd January, 1794. She married the

Rev. John Thompson, B.D., Rector of Mesey-Hampton, Glou-

cestershire, who died 12th February, 1773, in his seventy-

second year. They had issue one son, John Thompson, who

died young.

Note.—A monument in Clysthidon Church, thereon :

—

"Francis Huyshe, M.A., 61 years Rector of Clysthidon, 9th February,
1764, aged 92. Sarah, his wife, daughter of Richard Newte, Esq., of Da-
vale, Bampton, \9th March, 1748, aged 70. Richard, their eldest son, 24th
June, 1736, aged 27."

Arms, Huyshe, impaling Newte.

A mural memorial, with a remarkable inscription, to these four daughters,
is found in the chancel of Sidbury Church.

'
' Beneath this stone in the burial place of their ancestors of Sand in this

parish, are deposited the bodies of the four daughters of Francis Huyshe,
formerly Rector of Clysthidon, and his wife Sarah, daughter of Richard
Newte, of Duval, in the parish of Bampton, who themselves closed the eyes

of Elizabeth, November 12th, 1731, in her 2\st year ; Sarah, the eldest, and
widow of John Thomson, Rector of Mesey-Hampton, county of Gloucester,

died January 2nd, 1794, having completed 86 years. Frances followed her
sister, April 22nd, 1797, at the age of 82. Jane, the youngest, ended that

line of the family, with her own blameless life, October 23rd, 1802, in her
83rd year.

Where now is their boast, that they and theirforefathers of Sand were a
branch of the family of Huyshe of Lud-Huyshe and Doniford. county of
Somerset, and that the blood of the Plantagenets flowed in their veins,

through Joan, daughter of the first Edward ?

Nothing now can avail them, but their endeavours, through the grace of
our great God and Saviour Jesus Christ, to be prepared to meet that Saviour
as their Judge. (Titus II, \3).

Reader ! the same judgment awaiteth thee."

Arms on a lozenge—Huyshe, quartering Avenel, Bourchier and Reynell.

The royal descent of Huyshe through Wentworth, from the Princess Joan of

Acre, third daughter of King Edward 1, is interesting.

Hugh le Despencer, Junior—Lord de Spencer, and K.B.—summoned to Par-
liament as a Baron, 1314 to 1325, was the eldest son of Hugh le Despencer,
Senior, Earl of Winchester, by his wife, Isabel, daughter of William Beau-
champ, Earl of Warwick. He married, in May, 1306, at the Friars' Minors,
London, Eleanor, then aged thirteen, eldest daughter of Gilbert de Clare,

seventh Earl of Hertford, and third of Gloucester—surnamed the Eed Earl

—

by his second wife, the Lady Joan Plantagenet, third daughter of King Edward I.

After his decease, she re-married Lord Zouche de Mortimer, and died 30th June,
1337.
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The tragic fate of these noblemen, father and son—the hapless favourites of

King Edward II—their being executed with great barbarity, the elder at Bristol,

27th October, 1326, and the younger at Hereford, 29th November, 1326, are

well known episodes in English history.

The fourth son of Hugh le Despencer, Junior, and Eleanor Clare, was Sir

Philip le Despencer, who married Margaret, daughter and heir of Ralph de
Gousill, and died about 1313. He was succeeded by his son, Philip le Despencer,

ob. 1349, who married Joan Strange. To him, his son, Sir Philip, who was sum-
moned to Parliament as a Baron—Lord le Despencer—by writs from 1 7th De-
cember, 11 Richard IE, 1387, to 3rd October, 2 Henry IV, 1400. He married
Margaret Cobham, and died 1400-1. He was succeeded by his son, Philip, Lord
le Despencer, but he appears never to have been summoned to Parliament as a

Baron. He married Elizabeth, youngest of the three daughters and coheirs of

Robert, Lord Tiptoft, ob. 1372, by Margaret, daughter of William, Lord Dein-
court, ob. 1379, and grandson on his mother's side of the unfortunate Bartholo-

mew, Lord Badlesmere, who, after the defeat at Boroughbridge, in 1322, was
taken prisoner, and, with about ninety more, lords, knights, and others, who
suffered a similar fate, he was "hanged, drawn, and cpiartered at Canterbury,
and his head set upon a pole at Burgate." By this match with Elizabeth
Tiptoft, Sir Philip inherited Nettlested, and died 1423-4. This descent is found
on the shield further referred to, on Sir John Wentworth's tomb.

Sir Philip Spencer appears to have had an only daughter and heiress, Mar-
gery, ob. 1475, and she married Sir Roger Wentworth, ob. 1452. He was the
son of John Wentworth and Agnes Drontield, the son of John Wentworth and
Alice Bissett, of Elmsall, co. York.

Sir Roger, who is styled of Nettlested, apparently jure uxoris, had two sons :

one, Sir Philip, of Nettlested, ancestor of the Barons Wentworth, of Nettle-

sted, and Earls of Cleveland ; and the second, Henry Wentworth, ob. 1482, of

Codham Hall, Wethersfield, Essex, which he appears to have acquired, and
was the tirst of the family settled in the count}7

. He married Elizabeth, the
only daughter of Henry Howard, of Wigenhall, Norfolk, brother of Sir Robert
Howard, ancestor of the Dukes of Norfolk. Arms of Howard, as found on his

grandson's, Sir John Wentworth's, tomb

—

Gules, on a bend between six crosses

crosslet fitch6e argent, an ermine spot for difference.

He was succeeded by his son, Sir Roger Wentworth, of Codham Hall, and
also of Gosfield, jure uxoris, by marriage with Ann, daughter and coheiress of

Humphrey Tyrell, of Warley. In 1497 he was at Blackheath, engaged in the
suppression of the Cornish insurgents, on which occasion, in company with six

others, he was knighted; in 1499, served as Sheriff of Essex and Hertfordshire
;

and in 1520, was in the train of Henry VIII, being in attendance on the Queen
at the Field of the Cloth of Gold, where met the two monarchs of France and
England

—

" Those suns of glory, those two lights of men,
'Twixt Guines and Arde."

He died 9th August, 1539, his wife 1534
;
they were buried in Wethersfield

Church, where there is a fine monument to them, with their recumbent effigies

in alabaster, originally finely painted and gilded, but of which scarcely a vestige
remains. Both tomb and figures are much mutilated : the knight is bare-headed,
but otherwise in full plate armour, over which he wears a surcoat or tabard, on
which his arms were once illuminated ; his feet rest on a unicorn. The lady
has a pyramidal head-dress with flowing lappets, and a rich collar and pendant
of roses around the neck. Panels, with shields denuded of their charges, appear
below. He left four sons and three daughters. Roger, his third son, was of

Booking, and grandfather of Ann Wentworth, who married Rowland Huyshe.
Arms of Tyrell, as found on his son's tomb

—

Argent, two chevrons azure, on the

upper an annuletfor difference, a bordure engrailed gules.

To Sir Roger came his eldest son, Sir John Wentworth, of Codham Hall and
Gosfield

;
knighted by Henry VIII in 1546, and ob. 1567. He married Ann

Bettenham, of Kent, ob. 1575, by whom he had one son, who died young, and
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three daughters. They are buried in Oosfield Church, under a high tomb of
Purbeck marble, beneath the arch which separates the Wentworth chapel
(built by them) from the chancel. A portion only of the inscription on the
border fillet remains

;
below, in cusped panels, were originally ten shields of

brass, their bearings enamelled and gilded ; of these three remain. One, with
fourteen quarters, displays in the first seven the descent of Sir Roger, who
married Margery Spencer, on both sides:— 1. Sable, a chevron between three,

leopard}? heads or, a crescent gules surmounted of another or, for difference (Went-
WORTH). 2. Gules, on a betid argent, three escallops azure (BlSSETT). 3. Paly
of six, sable and argent, on a bend gules, three 'mullet* or

(
DronfieLD), being the

descent of Wentworth, and 4. Quarterly argent and gules, in the second and
third quarters a fret or, over alt on a bend sable, three mullets of the first (appar-
ently for difference) (De Spenckr). 5. Barry of six, or and azure, a canton
ermine (G-odsell). 6. Argent, a saltire engrailed gules (Tiptoft). 7. Argent,
a fess between two bars gernel gules (Badlesmere), being the descent of De
Spencer. The remaining seven quarters relate to succeeding matches of the
family. Above the shield on a helmet, in profile with mantling, is the Went-
worth crest :

—

Out of a ducal coronet or, an unicorn's head couped at the shoulders.
Arms of Bettenham on the tomb :

—

Argent, a, saltire engrailed sable, between four
bears' heads erazed, of the last, muzzled or.

IX.—3(ame0 ^Uy&fyt, born 12th September, 1712, died at

Cullompton 25th May, 1784; married &n\V $aV&OVl$. She

died at Cullompton 16th June, 1807. They had issue one son,

who died young.

X.—^loljn ^U£0f)£, changed the spelling of his name to

i^Ul^f), born 29th June, 1717, died 17th May, 1802, buried at

Pembridge ; will proved P.C.C., 22nd July, 1802. He was

rector of Pembridge, Herefordshire, and married 20th March,

1766, at Oxford, (EU^atof), daughter of Thomas Hornsby,

of Durham, Esq. She was born 17th June, 1738, died June,

1792. They had issue two sons and one daughter (1) Francis,

of whom hereafter ; (2) John, in holy orders, sometime of

Heathenhill, in the parish of Clysthidon, now of Exeter, born

10th December, 1772, married at Eardisley, Herefordshire,

October, 1799, Millborough Ann, daughter of Thomas Harris,

of Hereford. She died 19th July, 1824. They have now

living four sons and one daughter ( 1 ) John, of whom hereafter ;

(2) Rowland, vicar of East Coker, Somersetshire, born 26th

August, 1801, married Hannah, daughter of John Bullock, of

East Coker; (3) George (Henry), born 2nd February, 1804,

major in the 26th Bengal Native Infantry, late Assistant Com-

missary-General, married (1830) in India, Harriette Matilda,

daughter of— Lightfoot; has issue John Troughton, born 10th
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February, 1832 ; a daughter, born 20th January, 1837. (4)

Alfred, born 8th August, 1811, a first lieutenant in the Bengal

Horse Artillery, married 1836, in India, Julia {Maria), daugh-

ter of the Rev. (George) Hagar. (5) Millborough Ann, born

29th November, 1803, married 25th January, 1832, the Rev.

Charles Walkcy, of Lucton, Herefordshire, and has issue (1)

John Charles Elliott, born 14th September, 1833 ; (2) Francis

Samuel, born 6th January, 1836, and a daughter, born 24th

August, 1837
; (3) Sarah, born 1st January, 1770, married

at Pembridge, 1st June, 1793, Richard Whitcombc, Esq., of

Bollingham, Herefordshire (of the Whitcombes of Berwick-

Mavesyn, county of Salop), who died April, 1829, at Cleveley,

Cambridgeshire ; their only issue, Richard Whitcombc, born

2nd March, 1794, a barrister of Lincoln's Inn, one of the

Commissioners of Enquiry into the Municipal Corporations,

died 12th November, 1834, buried at Hastings.

Note.—Sarah Huyshe, who married Richard Whitcombe, was daughter of

John, ob. 1 802, and sister of Francis, the compiler of the pedigree.

Rowland Huyshe, vicar of East Coker, died without issue iu 1863.

Major George Henry Huyshe became a general in the army and C. B. He
had another son, George Lightfoot, born 1839, a captain in the Eifle Brigade.

His daughter was called Mary Millborough, and married in 1857, Richard ffoliot

Eliot.

Lieut. Alfred Huyshe also became a general in the army and C.B. He had
issue (1) Alfred George Huyshe, of Sand, died 6th August, 1886, without issue

;

he was also a major-general in the army and C.B. ; he married 1870, Harriet
Helena, daughter of Francis Arthur French, of Newlands, Dublin. (2) Francis
John Huyshe, of Sand, born 1840 ; clerk in holy orders

;
(rector) of VVimborne-

Minster, Dorset ; married 1877, Amy, daughter of ... . Eatclyffe, and has
issue. (3) Dunbar Frazer Huyshe, born 1841 ; Lieut. -Colonel, Royal Artillery

(late Bengal) ; married 1876, Augusta, daughter of the Venerable Archdeacon
Bridge, and has issue. (4) Wentworth Huyshe, born 1847 ; married 1870,
Gertrude, daughter of ... . Ulhorne. (5) Edward Vyvyan Huyshe, born
1850 ; a major in the Welsh Regiment, 1889. (Vivian's Visitations of Devon,
1895).

XL—jFratlCfe ^Uttff), now i^U^Ije, having returned to

the old spelling of the name, of whom in the commencement

of this pedigree.

Note.—Within the Castle of Exeter was the antient Church or Collegiate
Chapel of St. Mary, established at a remote period for four Prebendaries.
Lysons says it was founded in the reign of King Stephen by Ralph Avenell
(grandson of Baldwin de Brionis) and his aunt, Adela. Dr. Oliver assigns its

foundation to be coeval with that of the Castle, and speaks of letters patent
addressed by William Avenell to Robert Chichester, Bishop of Exeter, 1138-50,
wherein it is styled, " Ecclesia de Castello Exonie cum quatuor Prebendis." The
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four Prebends were those of Hayes, Cutton, Carswell, and Ashclyst, the patron-

age of all being vested in the Barony of Oakhampton. The College was sup-

pressed with other Collegiate Churehes and Chapels, but the building continued
in use, and divine service was performed in it till it was taken down about the

year 1782. The Prebend of Cutton, valued in Henry VIII's taxation at eight

pounds, in the reign of Queen Elizabeth, came into the possession of the Aclands,
the present holders, and the lands of the Prebendal manor are in the parish of

Poltimore.

It is interesting to note that the Rev. Francis Huyshe, M.A., the compiler
of this pedigree, was the Prebendary of Cutton, of this antient foundation,

being instituted thereto 4th July, 1831—patron, Sir Thomas Dyke Acland,
Bart. ; and further, the coincidence of an Avenell being concerned in its early

foundation, whose arms form one of the quarterings of the family escutcheon
of Huyshe, from one of whom they descend.

The old Chapel was situate to the right, just inside the main gateway of the
Castle. In it was a considerable collection of arms and armour, given early in

the present century by Lieutenant-General Simcoe, Commander of the District,

to John Houlton, Esq., of Farleigh Castle, Somerset, but which a few years

since was restored to Exeter, and is now preserved in the Museum. A house
for the custodian of the Castle precincts has lately been erected on the site of

the Chapel, and in taking out the foundations the floor of the preceding edifice

was discovered, together with some human bones, probably the remains of

former Prebendaries, there interred.

There is a tradition that the final destruction of the Chapel was determined
on through the tolling of the bell for the daily service, which, during assize

time, annoyed the Judges, and the Prebendaries declined to cease.

XII.— 3|0f)tt ^U£0f)£, now rector (1837) of Clysthidon,

born 15th September, 1800, married &nrt Bl^Ma, daughter of

William Greaves, of Mayfield, Derbyshire, M.D.
Note.—Grand Master of the Freemasons for the Province of Devon ; wa3

married 4th May, 1837, and died 18th October, 1880 ; buried at Clysthidon.

FROM THE HALL WINDOW, SAND.


